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EH: S0 what happened to your back? Did you injure vyour
sack at work?

RE: It went crook when I was a kid, I think. I was doing
pole vaulting and we had pine poles, and my/zvb' snappred and I
fell on my head, head first on the foot this pine tree and I

rememnber I flaked out and I musf have dohe funny faces when I

came up and all the kids were lavghing. I never think - it used
B ; ; ; ;

to get —offbeOnce in a while it gets bad, and it used to

get worse and worse and worse, And even after my trip to

Kiandra, next day I was so crook I could Just drag ny legs
around. But when I got hot and warm, I could ski. But 4if 1
slowed down, I will have had it. I had to Just keep going. And
then I had this operation. I was the first bloke in the worla
that had beones welded with the electric current. I had my story
in the paper. I made the headlines everywhere but they did not

nention namegs.

KH: Oh. I see. You have made headlines more than once.

R¥: Yes, oh ves. |

KH3 Your skiing record is still making head neg.

RK: ¥Yes, that one I had. Kossy - Kiandra, SR v i L

411 the blokes talk of it, all the year. and they do a bit of a
tripfhere and a bit of a tripfhere, and they try to study 1it.

. (Gong 2 preon
And one bloke knows the first bit to. say. as far as it & i
or Mawseas. ’
- And so GY knows bits around Table Top. And nong ,of
“Smes - Vonzeto
them know the WhOlaﬁ- Som%{ they comnbine - last yvear Dennis s
did one end and Peter Thonpson did the other end. But
they did not last. They only lasted as far as Nordhein. and they
took 8 hours to get Lo Nordhein
KH: 8 hours to Nordheim. Cn, where Noﬁheim is now?
RK: Yes.
KH: From Perisher to Nordheim?
RK: Yes. It was a fair time, but it is still a long way to
C/ 74
9o — that 1s where you are going to get iﬁﬁ"%“ 131?5? CesJacks.

“
Trees have grown a lot too, since I went to ﬂ? ..... nlace after
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f,x-’?:f\ﬂf"f."/
last . i And I walk round, where I have my route. I knew ex- up there with me, and aAsko Askilla, a bloke from Canberra. And
actly where - had gone, and t;ggg wg;e a ruddy 10 foot tall then 1t was up to the windows a few tines. But i1t was sort of
there already. Like 7.7y ‘:/:;;Er{g;:g"is lots more little scrub plowing, it was not the same sort of snow. In 64, you could ski
there. It would not be as ®asy to ski my route any more either. over the valley; take off from the hut and ski right down. It
KH: You don't think so? was dead smooth, no river or nething. You couldn't see the
RK: I1f vyou maybe mark 1t better. But when I went through river, well, most of the winter. And cornices on the top of
they were doing grazing there, there was too much rubbish @rovnd ' the Gungarten - it was Just fantastic - about a 30 foot drop.
there.There was =7 . nmuch snow in 64, too. Like you could Just KH: So you could go out to the edge - - &n (awgﬁeﬂéﬂ ?
Sl 4 EhHEE s vw s RK: And two peaks there, they were connected by a big cor-
KH: 64 was a big vear, wasn't it? nice. But you could not get down, only at the one spot in the
RK: Oh, it was a good snow year. Grey Mare was covered to middle. You had to know the spot.
the top. KH: The whole length of Gungarten?
KMz That was the very big year when some of the roofs in | RK: Yes.
places had their verandaﬁ%?ﬁ:ﬁnd they had to tunnel into the Man KH: One big cornice?
e Snowiﬁiver. RK: Yes, yes. And there was one point towards the Valen-
RK : Yoo, And when [ went to Grey Mare, I left Guthega in tine Valley where you could take off. It was good schuss down
the evening and I skied like hell, and I got to Grey Mare, and no there, but it was so wide it was hard to see for a long time
nut! And I started taking bearings where it should be, and I where to go down. Because I used to ski - I used to do my shop-
skied over the chimney and snow fell in the chimney. ping in Cabramurra sometimes, and next time I might go to Island
KH: Yes? Benétget my sausagg;’ - from there.
RK: And then I had to dig like hell. It was getting dark KH: Island Bend was still going then?
and I juEF dug in the front door. I had to prop the fly door RK: Yes. They had sort of a shop there. and they had good
open anqqtore open then, and I got in. But it was up to the - : Italian sausages there and all sorts of stuff. And I bought
the only time 1 have seen it up to the roof in Grey Mare. mainly sorts of spicey meat there.
KH: A11 pouRd? KH: So vou used to come down the White's River road?
RK : Vos, : REK: Yes, I skied down it.
KH* No drift? KH: Down in to ﬁ%unyang.gifhhﬁé I
RK: Ne, it was that bleoody snow. RK: Yes. But I would ski - go”ﬁ&icup and Saucer and
KH: Gn hoth sides? beat my track there, and I would ski up Valentine Valley up to
RK: Yes. A the Gungarten and down to the road, so I would always know how
WH Even the roof? the snow was forming there. And that year it was beautiful. The
RI : Yes. The only time - I have been there in other good whole valley was dead smnooth. You could schuss down, Just sit
vears and never been - it has not been even up to the windows. down, it Jjust went. Pz

— <l se

One year when we were up - it must have been 65. Ross Martin was KH: No wonder yvou could do the best time. Barry Mar-
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shall, I was talking to him sometime ago, and I said to him, 'You
Kknow, it is amazing that nobody has broken that record." And he
said to me, "You know, 1t might never happen, because the chances

of getting the right person and the right snow and the right

weather and the right skis, altogether - - ="

REK: Yes. And that day, the day before I was going to do
it, I had tried two times, other times. The day before - , I went
as far ass%%hméPass, and the weather closed in.

KH: The day before?

RK: Yes, the day before, I went as far as Schlipgk Pass, and

I turned back becavse I saw it was going to close in, it was get-
ting really bad. I went back. But it did not snow very much but
it got really sort of a white-out, and I gcot bapglpp Cooma Hut.
The next morning I followed my track up to thé)ﬁ”hq‘Eass, and I
got my special way to come across the Rolling Grounds. ;)
come down to Windy Creek and cross about 45 degrees from - there
18 % snow gauvge there, and you come right to the Schlipk Pass.
And that year - because Schlimk Pass was snooth too, you could
schuss down - it was horrible, really horrible fast, but you
could schuss right down. And I thought - I was Just after a good
record, I schussed it down. I did net fall either, I went way,
way up the other side, that climb up to Gungarten. I knew after
a few runs like that, I knew that it is going tﬁjiery hard to
beat. Like, other years, you cannot schuss down that. It haé got

ripples and roughemﬂi@&ﬂnd I had been there a few times when it
had not been like that. And that morning. too, I left about -

what was i1t -~ the first light, anyway, it was still dark when I
left.

KH: This is from Cooma Hut?

RK: Cooma Hut. And there was only one bit of c¢loud. Lt

night have been a kilometre long, it was a little cloud, and it
moved in the samne direction I was going and it kept the snow
cool,and I skied and skied underneath. I Just kept going under-—

neath this cloud. I was goilng like a bat out of hell and I
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lhar’€
staved under this cloud till Happy Jack's. And thenfg swan
e «
across Happy Jack's - it left me and I had to change . %Ku At

least I was on agreen stick and as soon as the cloud went and it
was so much lower, I had to change to klister, but I had had my

good run then.

KH: 50 what wax did you say vou were on for most of the
run?

' grecsn
RK: The hardest stick wax. It is a special - . g a8
not very many days - every year there might be a day or two you
can use that wax. It is so hard, it is like candle, it is that
hard.
KH: Who makes it?
RK: They use it in Finland and when blokes go racing in
Europe they use 1it. Mest blokes do net even have 1t here. It is

that hard.

KH: No. S50 there are different kinds of green stick.

RK: Yes, there is special green, it is sort of - - -

KH: Specilial green?

RK: Yes. When it is more than 30 degreesbelow ééntigrade,

really, really fine snow, vou would blow on that snow, and if you
can feel it)likefvvwgz/ﬂfﬁéa %ometimes you get really fine snow
and it would not run,‘normal wax would not run, then you use spe-
cial green. You might have to nix, even mix paraffin. This

vyear in the world championships they had to mix paraffin in it.

wes
KH: What temperature did you say iEﬂfor?
RK: Below 20 in Europe.
KH: 30 degrees ééntigrade?
RK: Yes, but that morning, .snow was sort of blown and it
. wesnlt ot Loind " "
was really fine. IE - & » and 1t was really fine snow,

and because fthes fine snow there is so many more particles to
stick on your wax. And also these days they wax skis like I used
to do. But I had wooden skis then, and I burned them with paraf-
fin in the heel and in the tip, and I only waxed them in the

mniddle - - -
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KH?
RK:
had

gets low,

the

they went round but they were still fast.
think blokes got faster skis now,
But my skis were.

wocden skis.

oo bormed. i+ o7 -

e I were going to wieey ot
I burned it with a blow torch, and I kntw they,because T

worn a few skis out, wooden skis they used to weagrt'ﬂnd 1 +hoogh,
besg:wear?%%cause when it wears out through the tar, it-

it just starts coming out like toilet paper. I burned

paraffinr’so when it wore out, it still remained fast. and

And that is why I

they have got plastic skis.

I think, faster. My skis kept wax a lot better,

They were almost waxless because wood has got hair

wa, L. ]
in it and it is rubbed onemgnd it is a bit wax-less too.

KH:

But vour paraffin stopped that from happening? Stopped

vyou from wearing through to the wood.

RK: Yes, it was wearing, but it always remained still
paraffin in the .gyﬁyi...of the wood and it jd5+ kept fast.
KH: The paraffin soaks right in.

RK: Yes, it goes in, yes.

KH: Because they are the points that rub the most, aren't
they?

REK: Yes, in the heel of the - yes, and if you hit a bit of

ice on the side of the hill.

I had one pair of blue Bonnar

skis and they lasted a week, and they were so round you could not

traverse with them.

And I thought if I get only conditions like

that,.gQQ...cannot make it then. because if you cannot control

your skis on the downhill slopes, nothing W(ﬂ?% round.

KR
RK:

of a ski,

50 what sort of skis did you ski on?
They were Finnish skis - Jarvin_en - they are not much

they were too light for Australian conditions,, really.

e -
But that day the snow was good Snow. You can still bu%«. There

is a bloke in Thredbo who has got — I think he has got 500 pairs

of them.

They brought lots of them out, and they were all right.

and then started to come this first impregnated - the sole with

the plastic.

i1f they put plastic in the wood,

aAnd then the wooden ski was finished, and because,

it was not the same ski any
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nore. It started to come really hard, a bit like these polvthene

scles now. They are really tricky to wax. You have got to put

the base wax on, and everything right. &nd even then vyou get

poor Snow. I also believe - with wooden skis they had big, round

edges, that they were softer.

They carried a bloke higher on the

soft snow, I am dead sure. These new skis,

. .o Thot Lo
on your middlep,sKi does not touch the snow,

they put so much

camnber and they

are unsuitable for long records. I am dead sure. If they got

good track, they would be a lot faster, but not when you have not

got a track.

KH: You did not have a track?
RK: No.
KH: Perhaps you had a bit of a track from the day before,

did you?

RK : Yes, as far as  SchliMk Pass, I had a little bit of a
mark, and I knew exactly how to come. And I think when I came to
Guthega., I don't remember - it was Jjust a matter of minutes, it
was not even 10 minutes when 1 came from Cooma Hut to Guthega. X

went up again, and I followed my track from the morning before,

sort of - a little bit of snow cloud once in a while, but it was

so beauvutiful, and I flew down to the dam.

KH: You skied right down to the dam?

RK: Yes, oh ves. And my car, at that stage, was about 20

foot under the snow. There was 50 cars buried in the Guthega car

prark from the Balmain Cup meeting on. And my car was there,

well, 1t had been there for maybe two weeks by then, anvywav. Aand

it was a few weeks later till I got it out and it was all flat-

tened. The wheole Guthega slope was like that. You did not see

any roofs. Chimneys were sticking out. When you came up from

the Perisher Creek it was like 1n Switzerland, the snow banks

were about - J would say about 20 feet.
KH: On Perisher Creek?
RK: Yes, coming up from Perisher Creek. It took about a

week with the big bulldozers - they had a sort of shovel with a
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long, long arm, and it lifted it up and dumped it over. Because

there was that much of it, even that way it tock a long, long

time to get up. That machine was so big, when it got in the car

park, the first two cars, it did not even feel them, Jjust dumped

saw wheels spinning in the Snowy, and

The

them over and then they
they thought they werec%évVép..some cars. two first cars,

they were a complete write-off, they had got '&C. e M—

KH: There were a lot of cars were write—-offs that year,
weren't there?

Flew
RK: Oh ves. hnd‘Gfmjc- Dudzinski had %ﬁgitroen. He had
lots and lots =.........and he had his new Citreoen with a

fibreglass roof which was all mashed and % I had a Toyota
And vyou could see the motor

wet

Crown;:; 1t was almost new too.

through the bonnet, because snow had sunk on it, and it

had forced the bonnet down onto the motor. It was that shocking,

.1 almost cried about that.

KH: No insurance cover?

RK: Everybody's cars were fixed up, Yes. That was really

I don't know I don't think if they would do it now but that

time, everybody's car had got damaged, insurance paid them.

KH: That is a natural cause.

RK ¢ Yes, i1t was, ves. But there was ,no warning when it
started. We were all in the YMCH.‘ﬂdﬁég7éaﬂBalmain Cup and ther

and ¥ Showesd

was not much snow around, and then it started snowing ....7\.a d

then it said it is intensifying, it has stopped, it is not moving

any more. It Just kept snowing, and we had 30 people in the

{ ledge i
YMCaA, lots ' 4 and they were all beginners, and somne racers.
The racers gbt out, they could ski ocut; the beginners got stuck.

I was there with George and a few other blokes. I used

to ski every day to Perisher and bring milk and bread and stuff.

And we could not get out. And then .Qﬁ%.. went to Island Bend,

they said the road would not be open till next month or some-

SAape/.
thing, because there was so muc@N and we told them they had to

ski out. They said, "We can't ski." We said, "You have to ski

@

e
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ety
at least as far as Sponar's Inn," becausgaynere buses could get.
And everybody skied to Sponar's Inn when - - —
KH:

That is right. I heard different stories about that.

But to go back to your crossing, you skied on special greenstick

all the way to Happy Jack's?

RK ! Yes.

KH: On the one lot of wax?

RE: On the one lot of wax, ves. I did not rewax, all the
way.

KH: Aind so your rouvte was — you left Cooma Hut, and vou

left Cooma Hut in the dark, about 6 o'clock.

RK: Yes.

KH: And well, vyou Jjust go over the saddle and straight down
and across the danm. And then up the - what is that - Guthega
trig ridge?

RK: I de not go on the ridge. I go on Guthega Creek. And

that year the bottom of the creek was full too.
down;

You could schuss

well, not right from the top, like it got too fast, vou

could not schuss down. But i1f you wanted to, yvou could follow

the creek.

hotes,.

7 big'd“?S; and I thought, oh boy, if I skied into

/ et .
thaﬁklté@%@af@¢¢31iater. But I did not even think then, I skied

&
Aflnd over the top.

in July, was it?

right into the bottom?

KH: }60/. 7”",9 . was

RK Yes.
KH: What was the date? It does not matter that much - late
in Jil¥?
, . . . om .
RK: Yes, 1t was Just gettln%ﬂﬁugust. I think, when I did
ik S And I went - the whole winter I had on the Grey Mare,

and I

Just kept studying how the snow was falling. And at one stage,

Happy Jack was so good, I skied over Happy Jack's without taking

ny skis off, You did not know where ﬁappy Jack's was, but then
2 1“& ﬂnAS were a "F
1t opened up ‘... - .. our foot of snow even at Happy

It was not open, because a few months later #‘be% 71 3A5ﬂ/
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Jack's, and the river was fairly - but because 1 hit Happy Jack's
fairly early, I really did not have to - I sort of waded across,

I stuck my skis over - - -

KH: You had to wade across on the crossing?

RK: Yes. oh ves.

KH: What, did you Jjust roll your pants up, or something?
RK: No, no. Had to put all the clothes in a bundle and

throw them over, boots and all, and wade across. And I thought

somebody would have had a good laugh if he saw me coming off the

thing, because the snow bank was perpendicular, and I was trying é p

; ) : 5 o
to get my toes in and I Jjust kept slipping back in the river, Jf €
Frow el .

crawl . But, oh boy, I was cold.
enougqﬂto S ,
KH: But didn't you know of the bridge?
RK: No, there was no bridge then.
KH: It has been there a long time, two logs. Just two logs

across the Happy Jack's, not very far on the - - -

RK: No, there was a cable, and I was planning tec use that
cable and go around - try to use the cable, but there was no
bridge.

KH: There is two logs and they are very old .....

RK: Well, maybe they - - -

KH: Nearjﬁrooks.

RK: Yes, near &rooks. There was no logs there. If there

were, they were that much under water, because it was running

Offe

that well. But there was no way you could - and Kor@ and

. went throdggwghg&?géy almost drowned. They really got
washed along for a long time.

KH: To keep to the same story, to go back to the route; you
left Perisher and up the creek, up Guthega Creek, and then you
actually went up toé&‘ﬂ‘.\%éz}?ass?

RK: Yes, over 7«6 aﬁdSteven's Pass.

the first bloke to use the route down to Windy Creek -

But I think I was
ac far 0SS L
snow gauge there, a sort of steel pipe sticking on that right

hand side, about a kilometre down from - in Windy Creek. And the
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best route is across the Relling Grounds there, and You come

right in the Schlink Pass.

KH: But you did not go right down to the Windy Creek Hut?
RK: No, no.
KH: No. About halfway down, and then you sneak across the

fw’c-lh'n\(] Grou nds.

RK: Yes, and you come 45 degrees and when vyou have skied it

. hy) .Sér'
ence, YOu never skl the other way. Like /\ /W .next morning,
blokes like they knew I nade a good time and they studied how I

did it. They studiedqd,

and they @ould not believe the way I went.
Like. they had been skiing there for donkey's years, too.

KH: Who was that?

RK: Korq. Grunsund, and dts.a'ﬁk&s- They came the next morn-
ing and they checked how I went, which way I went, because I did

such a good time. And I think they also could not believe I went

«Q{ . behlnd f.; Ci/un— //
I took Lond Elera 74"7’1/\1 tg’é?

f%@m up Gungarten, and that year Valentine Valley (s Smotth, too.

up to Gungarten, but when they saw what I

garten, I think they saw the point.

And you get a few kilometres, Just sitting there and you Jjust

cruise down.

KH: So you came across the Reolling Groundsﬁmk’the Windy
Creelk side, came out :Lédhé....Pass. And then what? And then
went straight up the other side, did you?

RK: Yes. P tvas, 7%
KH: Practically very close tng;yr?1&ﬁ.trig....?‘Tin Hut.
RK: Yes, you go all the way to the trig. And that year,
'64, they were still being - the two trigs - they were sort of

connected by a big cornice. And in the middle of the cornice

there was a route You could get down, and I Jjust schussed - - -

KH: That is the way that I normally go to Tin Hut.
. A FGood Lok
RK: Yes, it would be /\yay to Tin Hut, too.
KH: It is a lovely run back, too, back to Scdink Pass, ter-

rific run.

RK: Yes, it is not too steep.
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KH: You can Jjust swing, and let them run.
RK: Yes.
KH: S0 then you get to the top of Gungarten and then did

you head towards Mawson's?

RK: No, I sort ef = = =

KH: To the end of Mawson's?

RK: Yes, I go on the right hand side of Cup and Savucer, and

then I keep on very right hand side of that - sort of when the

mountains drop off., 1 keep on the edge. I see Lake Eucumbene and

the Monaro Plains all the time I keep on the edge. I ski aif-

ferent ways there. And I sort of ski a standard beat and I made

some notes and things, and I found gut whedt I thought .

ﬁas the bes?t‘. ;izf“ /ir:jwca,lsgze iha‘tﬁc‘l‘;‘%& of bloke‘as do, sHill o

it, they think they ..,\:.../\..ﬂthey do not think they lose 500

feet, and it is different snow. And the wax will not work there.

But I get higher. I try te ski in the same sort of snaf all the

wWay. And that day. at least, it worked very well. Afhey try to

improve my - they went on the other side of Mawsoﬁg and going é@cf
down. and yvou 2Just slip for a while, and once your skis are

slipping, or if vou li?ét..up. vyou lose so muchﬂéﬂk-

KH: So vou stagﬂon the top? You really staved on the high

parts, didn't you?

RK: Yes.

KH: You went around the top of the Valentine and then

around behind the Cup and Savcer; and then the Bulls Peaks, and

then yvou came in near Nordheim?

RK: Yes.

KH: Near Nordheim, Jjust to the right of Cesjacks.

RK: Yes.

KH: And what did you do then, when you got ko Spencer's

Peak? Did you go toc the left or the right of that? .
RK: I turned right from Cesjacks. There was a bit o£~pad—
dock going towards Eucumbene, and there was a big fence post

there, and ,_,/H@Z LUp in the gum trees there. And I fol-
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lowed the gum tree down. And the next creek, over the bridge. I
don't know what it is even called. That creek I found out, it
was all the way downhill to Happy Jack's. It was not all that

direct, but it was all the way downhill, and I worked it out on

the way to Cabramurra a few times. Like it was always double
pole all the way to the river. And I went on that creek.
KH: It must have been - I wonder which creek it was? Not

Tikbeaudo’s Creek?

RK: I think it might be 715€M1403. or something 1like that.
I don't know the name of it. It is a long creek, it goes all the
way from ﬁ‘ﬂ/ﬁﬁ:.

KH: Yes. You did not go past ltbeaudg’'s Hut?
RK: Noe there was no hut on that.
KH: Or the hut near Spencer's Peak, past CesJjacks, there is

another hut.

RK: No, I did not see any hut. Only Cesjacks Hut I use as
a base sometimes. And I knew from CesJjacks to Happy Jack's, I
knew that bit. Peter Thompson found that way, and I think he
—~last year he did a bit of}%tudx there.

KH: Peter Thoifon - he is the guy that makes films now?

REK: Yes. He did it, but then he found - he tried to do it,
but they i run out of puff,.

KH: Oh, that is right, I heard about that. They did it in

12 hours or something; is that right?

RK: Yes.

KH: But they stopped at Nordheim.

RK: Yes. And they ha‘ﬂF’gﬁgyﬂwould have been better off if
like - I did not have - all I hadrgsfew sandwiches and then I had
a few raisins, ?cand I had 4%, .. to drink, that is all I had.

And I only até:Happy Jack's; but I should have, if I knew how hot
it was geoing to get aﬁéable Top, I should have had a lot more
drink becauvse I Jjust dehydrated...?....the sSnow was soggy, and
Pushing through up to Table Top - that way I really sort of

Punished myself.
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KH: S50 you left - vou crossed to,Jappy Jack's; you stripped
all your gear off and crossed Happy Jack's. And then did vyou
- which way did you go up on to - did you come up to lgaﬂhnc

W é&dge? Up to Brooks Hut or Happy/s Hut?
RK: I covuld see Brook'sﬁ?hen I crossed the river, but then I
turned sort of a bit along the river, and I found out there was,
looking from Jhgunjaﬂ, I could see there was one route; it went
all the wa§?ﬁ€ Table Top. 1t was all clear snow. And I figured

frem bening the +hing = P

out'&????ﬁ@ﬂWQA.that right underneath that sort of ridge it
would be dry snow, and it was, too. It was good snow. I skied
all the way up there.
KH: You went slightly east across the creek, the river, you

then headed east.

RK : Yes, it was sort of the wrong direction at that time,
but - - -~
KH: Yes, you did a dog leg.

Snow
RK: Yes. But I worked out I would get bettea, and I got
pbetter snow there, too. And every time after that, when I lef+
the Table Top airstrip, and I went in the trees, I sunk down. It

Just would not carry my weight, and I was sort of c¢rawling in the

SNOW. And 1t was best to keep in the open, the snow had got cold
and 1t was more windpacked. And in the trees it had not got cold
and it wasjﬂ?lbﬁ?¥k5W¥And that is where i omes hard, when you
gett - - -

KH: Where does it start to get hard?

RK: After Table Top. After Table Top you keep going

towards Cabramurra for a while, otherwise you go too low down.
Again I go towards Selwyn — I almost go to Selwyn Quarry, and

then I schuss down to Kiandra.

KH: So, did you go over Table Top at all, or around it?
RK: I go - - -

KH: Over the top?

RK: Over the top, Just about, there is that little bit

below the peak on the Kiandra side, round there. And then I go
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to Selwyn Quarry.

KH: Because there is a fire trail that goes around that.
RK: Yes, they have opened the trail almost exactly on the
spot where I went through then, toco. I have not been there for a

couple of years now.

KH: Yes. that makes it a lot easier, if vou can find that

ﬂ%@y"ﬁkﬁjﬁ”& fhnb

in the winter.

RK: Yes, but if there is a lot of snoa« 10,715 -feet, it
might be S¥/ gifficult to find it.

KH: That is right.

RK: And it is not only that. It is still - when you ski for
6 hours, you start thinking differently. You sort of think

i Like, I got that far - I met some Snowy blokes, they were
deing some task, measuring snow or something. And one was Danny

Cbllman. I knew the bloke. And I was still - I had done a bit
over 7 hours then. I should have been in Kiandra in half an hour

at least. And soon after that, I Jjust felt, oh, how stupid I am;

w7 ,
I am skiing like this, and could I have a littls\ est™ I am »mad

skiing like this. And I sort of sat down voluntarily: the next
thing I woke up: I had been lying on the snow, I must have fallen
off the log, and I was shivering and I was cold as hell. And I
Just started skiing, and if it was a blowing day or something, I
might have been in real trouble then. But then I got'gh Kiandra
and there was a kiosk there open - but first I went in the post
office and rang up back to Perisher, with the postmaster. And
then I went in the kiosk, and I drank, I Fhink. six large bottles
of lemecnade. The girl Gould not believg{ﬂ I Just sat there and I

drank slowly, and I Just kept drinking, and she could not believe

KH: Who is this?

RK: The girl in the kiosk - there was a little kiosk in the
front of the Ghalet at Kiandra. And I Jjust kept sitting there
and drinking. And after I drank - I must have got sugar back in

my blood - I felt almost fit enough to ski back. But I knew I
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would not be, and I got a 1lift to Cooma then.

KH: So there was not anybody there to pick you up?
RK: No. Everybodjk car was in the snow, buried.
KH: Oh, right. At Kiandra there must have been a lot of

snow, too.

RK: In Kiandra, 1t was up to the eaves of the post office.
KH: Up to the eaves?

RK: Yes. Oh, it was really collézal.

KH: Was the road cleared?

RK: No, it was half had been opened for a while, then traf-
fic was going through. But not many cars. I wWas | like - - -
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RK: c....a couple of days Just lying flat on my back. Then
I severely felt in my leg - it was starting to get sort of bad.
And I thought I would never reccover - I think it Jjust went from
had - 1t got worse and worse. I could not keep my leg straight.
KH: Really?

RK: And then it started to wither away. It Just was awful,.

1 Sust could not do anything with this leg, and it lost all the

strength. I could not lift my toes up, or nothing.

KH: You reckon it was since that time?

RK: Yes. It really got bad after that. And 1 still raced

that year a few times, but I never - and I gave skiing up. That
n Aidn't- Ao o

was last winter. I raally/«r a lot of skiing after that. I

have not been fit since. Like I used to go to Percy Ceretty's.

camp in Melbourne. I did a bit of running in the summer, and I

learned a few technigues;: did not eat butter, did not drink milk,
i . 5 I "
nothing like that. I sort of believe fﬁa%fs things. I don't know

if they were any good, but they seemed to be.

KH: That was in the early 60s?

RK: Yes. I used to run 100 miles a week. I ge%?gt 6
o'clock in the merning. run an hour in the merning; go to work at
nalf past seven. I did not work much. I went to work to get
some money and to pass my day. And ski - well, I used to roller
ski behind the Black Mountain then. I lived in O'Conner.

KH: What yvear was that?

RK Back in 63 and 4.

KH: You used to roller ski, did you?

REg Yes. People cééd not bellieve - some bushwalkers saw ne
coming alongitrack and they did net know what I was doing. They

must have thovght I was some sort of crank.

KH: Are they all right on a bush track?

RK: Oh ves. I had bigger wheels then, mny old things - they
were all right. And on Saturdays I used to run up to Bulls Head
turnoff in the Brindabellas and back. I did not work Saturdays.

I went for a run. I swim across the Cotter - - -
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KH: From here you used to run?

RK: From O'Connor.

KH: From O'Connor to Bulls Head?

REK: Yes. And one day - — -

KH: And back, in a day?

RK: Yes. Every week I would have the one really long run.
I did net run really hard. I Jjust kept Jogging, and then I swam

across the river and might eat three blackberries, and run again.
But I used to be back by 4 o'clock. And one night I did not get
back. I did my ankle, And the pecople I lived with, they got
really worried; they went looking Ffor me in the forest. And I
put a tree across the road, and I put a sign on it, so I thought
sonebcdy would be looking for me. aAnd they came round, they saw
the tree there but the note had blown off, and I said, "Did you
find a tree across the road?" They said, "Oh ves, there was a

¥

gum tree across the road.” I said, "I put the tree there and I
put a note there." And they did not sort of believe I ran that
far. I went that far in a day. But then they knew 1 had been

there because they saw what I did.

¥H: And to go right back, did you work on the Snowy Schene?

RK: I never worked actually on the Snowy Scheme at &ll. I

worked with the Yankee mob who did some work 1in A%@Q%%%. I worked

with them in the hills in Adelaide, a placg?ﬁ?}onga. I was a
Aors, @ Srmifer Soot oL - o AN

tunnel Wane o ag « -« x jog1what they do¢ here, a big dam for
the Adelaide water supply. aAnd I did the tunnelling there for

ten months.

KH: Is that what you did when you first came to Australia?
tade.
RK: Yes. aAnad reall£~?tacks of money then. I used to get -
H: There was tunnelling in Adelaide?
RK: Yes. It was jos+ 40 miles from Adelaide on the hills
there. towards Victor Harbour. And the money was Just colossal.

I vused to tell people what I earned and they could not believe

T saansw iRimImIwmes cessee L was doing all right. I could buy
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nyself a motor bike with the one week's wage and that sort of

thing. And they would say, "Do you really mean you get that
much money at it?" "Yes." It was really hard work. But I diad
not realise it was all the top wage - really good money. I dia
it for one year, and I had my car and everything paid off. And

. ) . { Frons )
then I thought, oh - I was getting T 1n my blood. My blood
was golng weak,., because if you - dynamite fumes in the miné, in

feeper Jowa She o . _ .
the tunnev..y\\ . Was getting werse there, it was getting -

and I got all toxic. I thought it is not worthwhile. I de not
43

see any sense in making a lot of money and being dead, and EQ}Eft‘
KH: That was when you first came to Australia? You did
that for a while?

Back
RE: Yes.ﬂln 58, yes.
KH: When did yvyou first start skiing here then?
RK: I did not know there was snow in Australia, when I canme
here. 1 did not bring my skis, nothing., I met this Finnish

BGetr Goskra g? CZmymwsﬁ#. ) )

Dloke...}4;.,v.w © once won the ACT '?AL: e had been Finnish
champion in Finland. And he was & bit pissed when I met him, and
he said. "Oh ves, you can ski too. You had better not cone
here.”" Becauvse he was Finnish chamnpion and he got beaten by

Corvnnsvnd .
£ who has been skiing

afiJ%%éﬁ%ééégy.I said, "Oh. I might Just go and haveigo. Because

vt e : i
the 2.......and there was this bloke

1 did not Kknow that there was snow.' "0Oh, you Jjust come with
mea." I moved to Canberra. I used to live in Sydney at that
time. I moved tc Canberra and started to do a bit of train-
ing. rfﬁe first race I went in I beat him, and ;éﬂétééﬁ.

mne. And I thought it cannot be that bad. And I started to do

nore tralining.

KH: That was about .....

RE: 61, I think, or 62. It was sooner, 60, &ven - - =
KH: That was when 1t was Just starting.

RK: Yes, it was Jjust starting.

KH: Perisher was Just starting.
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RK: Yes, if we had about 20 people in the race, that as a weak, but he would not complain. And he Jjust tried to keep on.
fairly good race. But there were Norwegians, a few Polish if he could keep on. And he would Jjust keep plugging on, plug-
blokes. The Norwegians have disappeared. You don't see &/ //Q'MFO" ( ging on.
Ab@@(..ﬂl ..all these ex-Guthega blokes any more. And then Aussies KH: Is he still racing now?
started skiing - actually Ross Martin?u, the first bloke from RK: Yes? he turns up for races even now. And if conditions
Aussie. He came with me in 65, I think, ves, 65, to Grey Mare. get sort Of'qfvaﬁﬂr; slow track, I think he is still hard to
And he did not believe how much I had skied, because there was beat.
nothing else to do in Grey Mare. I had my bit of breakfast in KH: S50 he is still training?
the morning: go up to jEﬁUnsﬁf. and then we come back and might RK Yes. He is very fit. He rides bikes to Sydney. He
have a bit more to eat, because the sun was warm; You could sit won some races last year, too. He got $800 push bikes and really
outside and do something most likely. And then in the afternoon Aﬁ good - the best racing gear. R e frames and things. He
we might ski to Alpine Hut and raid their food store. Wed ;w'ﬂ‘ ate is a really odd bloke because he has got a lot of money - Martins
.*ﬂ?fi(%{hﬁé was really perfect somebody had been there. Books, and what ever they were called.
Most likely there was a bit of Jjam around. We used to get a few KH: Oh, it is Marting - - =
supplies. We would ski dnnm¥and have good fun. Sometimes we RK: Yes, all the school books you buy - Martin Press.
even went as far as WhiteSRiver in the same day. We did not ski Ross Martin is the managing director. And he has got a lot of
that fast, but we Jjust sort of - that was when Ross learned to money. He might drive a Mercedes Benz and have a big mansion,
sort of stride with his skis. He used to Jé’..run. He was but he goes bike-riding and he goes body surfing, and he runs
with me in Grey Mare most of the winter. Then we went to New country marathons, and goes orienteering too. He is Just so busy.
Souvth Wales Gkampionships, and he came second to me, and he beat | KH: He married an American girl, didn't he?
the Snowies and a lot of .#79eT...blokes he would never _ | RK: Yes, Foy Martin. “Joy Martin rides, I think, on the - -
touch before. And he never looked back, he started to really do -
his homework then. The first time I skied with him he had raced KH: I think I have seen her ride somewhere.
already a couple of years in Australia. 1 took him from Perisher RK: Yes. She really ..G?QQQS....OH a bit, though. A
to Grey Mare. We had rucksacks on and it was soft snow,and I had little bit sort of wild. but all right. She writes some
to carry his rucksack in from the valley:; he was dead finished, children's books now.  She is doing some books for children.
he washféﬂaﬁ¢¢5.ne just could not make it. He was Just going to KH: I saw ber, I think, on a cover or something of an
pacl it all in. orienteering book.
KH Now, was that 652 RK: Yes, she went in the Australian team to Norway. She is
RK: Yes, it must have been 65 when I took him up. Ana one of the best in Australia. Big stuff. Ang shg”?frst_ Whisn
after that - about a month later we used to ski a bloody lot she first came to Australia she was able to Sump oféA;he floor
then. And I used to take him out all the time, and he really with her body weight in sand on her shoulders, 60 times, or Some-
picked up really fast. And he never complained. 1 could see he thing. She would sort of bump down on the floor and up again.
was going white: his nose was getting white and he was really She had legs like a kangaroo's. &he was really - but she could,




1016

Robbie Kilpinnen

b@d? 4ﬂ¢:£ch

like, we had lots of blokes after that., like ?biﬂfit enough to be

one of the best in the world, but she Jjust could not put it

She has burned her energy and taken 1t too fast. And
all the-,

together.

she never got away. Then we had - Barringtons and all

these hot runners turned up. They thought, this is goling to be

3 sy I ...,...coub ski, he is the best bloke there. They

never did any good, none of these people I know, really fit, fit

blokes, they never — none of them never did any good. Sone of

them cannot even stay on skis, 1 wonder how they c¢an run?

KH: Sc what was the first year then, that you went to Grey
Mare? About 63, was it? Just a year before - - -

RK: I think that must have been - the first full year was
63. I went sometime already there in 62. The first time I went

there was with George Dudzinski, early 62.

KH: 2;0 was that?
cooe
RK: Dudzinski.
as o5 -‘ﬁd..-‘].: " by
KH: Oh vyes, he /\the “Ski &”""/- /
o2

RK: Yas. He is the ¥YMCA sort of = I think;&?aptain of

skiing....é&%ﬁf..quite a good bloke. He used to go bushwalking.

I went bushwalking with hin, if I did not go running here, I

went bushwalkiag from Kiandra. And he knew a lot of country

as - as Ore, fare ’
..:)tandfy went bushwalking with him many.

And a bloke called Tom Mitchell - not Fom, what was his

around Kiandra. nany
tines.
first name?

.KH: S50 62 was the first time you went to Grey Mare with

George Dudzinski?

RK: Yes.

KH¢ So he showed you, sort of, where things were?

RK: Yes, And he showed me where, how to, not to go

7ﬁéﬁ%yhe 2;1}@ ed snow was better in the trees. And we skied
by (rn ss

along the road in the trees, half c¢rawling in the

trees, past Valentine, and all the time in the trees. I did neot

where we were going and I did not believe 1it. He said it is

going to be about three hours skiing, and we skied three hours

HOw
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. ) o
and we were not even at Valentine®, And he said @.mh4&¢ﬂ@;t is

Just beyond there, and I thought he was Jjoking. I thought, oh it

is geing to be behind the hill, but I did not say anvything. aAnad
we skied all day from Guthega to Grey Mare. And he was the only

bloke back in those davs,back in 64, and 63 who came to Grey

Mare. I went there the whole winter, and nobedy ever came. Otto

Pinkds used to come sometime$ in 64, mavybe once a vear, two times
a year. But Otte thought that Dudzinski used to drag his K

and some other bloke - - -

KH: FPrite?

RK: Fritz Down(?) was the .. sort of, the YMCA bloke, a
young bloke, and Hmﬂcama down. And it was really funny, too.
You hear & people in Tibet, they c¢an hear - some fantastic

things they can hear, their hearing is that acute. And for ex-

anple, they were coning to Grey Mare. and 1 was sitting in the

huk . I was having my tucker; it must have been about 2 o'clock,

something like that, I was in. And I could hear talking and I

thought, somebody is coming. I rushed to the door. and I could

not see people, and then I waited and waited. and I skied up the

= S 1 I still could not see people. and I thought,

.a.ske(%em o

Then I

the buggers

are hiding somewhere. Where were yvou then when

you were talking about me?
Oewvry

And they were Just comin%\from Valentine's Hut, and their voice$

carried over the top of the hill to Grey Mare Hut.

And you were saying this and that."

I could hear

them talking, I knew what they were talking about. Lucky they

were all ny friends. &nd I was only there for twe months, and

yYyour hearing gets that good. There was Just no noise. I did not

have a radio, I did not have nothing, and yvou could hear so many
things.

KH: 50, in 63, you Just spent - vou Jjust did a couple of

trips in, short trips?

RK: Yes, in 63, I was sort of doing a lot of ground work.

I skied a lot around the Cup and Sauvcer. and Mawson's and - - -

KH: In 637
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RK: Yes.
KH: That is when you were there by yourself for most of the

winter?

RK: Yes., the whole winter.
KH: The whole winter in 63. Was that a good snow year?
RK: It was not very good. You could neot ski down to the

river, but I couvld ski most of the way down, and then I had to
take the skis off, run across and over the top of the hill there

Was Snow again.

KH: You could ski all the way down.
RK: Yes, I did most of my training behind on the Grey Mare
itself, on the Grey Mareagange. I had a sort of course on the
a Good Year
top there. It was sort of

‘A often it used to close in. and
when it was so bad I did not-iike to go too far.

KH: Did you ever go right down to what we call the Grey AZ”’
Cafe. a little hut, tin shed?

RK: Yes, I know where that is, but I did not go there. i

went there in the summer time once.

KH: Quite a long way down.

RK: Yes, I never reached that - I never went that way down,
that far ﬂo&n. ﬂ@wn '

KH: Did you ever go to Pretty Plain?

RK: Yes.

KH: You did? You skied down there?

RK: Yes, I have been down to Pretty Plain a couple of
tines. .

KH: On skis?

RK: I think once I got as far as the hut with skis, but the
other time I turned back. I saw the hut and I turned back. It

was all sort of grass sticking through, and more or less not ski-

able stuff any more.

KH: But 64 would have been a good year. d
RK: It would have been. But I did not know about Pretty
. L/as *
Plain. I knew from the map. but I Jjust working on the Kossb &
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Kiandra: 64. I Just spent all my time there.

KH: and 63 too?

RK: Yes, ves,

KH: In 63, did you ski - when did vou start exploring the
Kiandra end, like -~ - -

RK: Kiandra end I did - George Dudzinski had these old army
maps. And he had some old maps - they had some old bﬁshwalking

tracks that the Chinese gold diggers had, or carriers, or
whatever. They had some tracks through Farm|ﬁidge and round
there. I had a whole heap of these old maps. And he took me
through from Kiandra to Selwyn(ﬂuarry and then down to Brooks's -
and ve slept at Brooks's. And then we went to Farnm ggdge and to Grey

_ : ) :
Mare. and then we were in Q./&?é’a few times. We went a few
ends there

week, with ..45#4%?‘*

KH: Did you? That was in 637

RE: Yes, in the summer time. we went bushwalking.

KH: Oh, inEheEummer?

RK: Yes, iﬁ the summer, ves. He did a lot of bushwalking.

] was telling him - I told him I want to do it, and I don't know
that bits And he has done a lot of bushwalking there. In those

; va
days, Happy Jack's Road }-open, too. Sometimes he would drive
. we ; :
the car. He had an old Helden. an%«?ould drive 1t on Happy

Jack's Road, and we would do certain creeks, or we would study
things like that,

KB: But when did vou start exploring the route, though,
like from Cesjacks - when did yvou decide what the best way was
across the Happy Jack's Plain?

R ‘64,

KH: Did vou look at that in the winter?

RK: Yes, 64. 1 went shopping to Cabramurra, and that Just
suited ne. I went about - maybe three, more, four or five tines,
I went to Cabramurra, did shopping there. I skied to Selwyn
Quarry and picked the road up to go through King's Cross to

Iﬂwwy¢
Cabramurra and come back. And then 1 found cur | well,nthere was no
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other way. J tried to go¢ straight, and you hit these few hills
hit and
and then you, bad snow,

there might be melting snow because it
was in the sun a bit, and vyou b&” up. There seemed to be
trouble a1l the time. And then [ went up ;%5?Tf(and I could see
this thing like a horse shoe coming from the Table Top, and I
thought I would go over there. And I went there. Next time I
skied through that way. it was good. And on the day I did the

record it was good, too.

KH: S0 what time would you have gone to Grey Mare? Was 1t
in June? In 647 ﬁ; %%”P » d@71'

REK: When the racing season started V«}“& he Balmain Cup was
the very first race, and I gave up ny work then. and I put all
my things in the car, all my WA4X&$ and all my clothes and things,
and skis. And I had to leave m;:;t f@@j@@...l staved up there,
and sometimes I would go - if there was racing in Victoria, I

might go to Victoeria for a weekend, and come back;: leave my car
in Mvagang. and back to Grey Mare. But I had to leave it there all
winter. It did not cost me much, because I had taken all my food
in the summer time. All the ralsins and oats. I ate cats - 1
was like a horse. All the ﬁ%ﬁ7”4%@fk

. g 2 ’ o e
that 1s what I had: I had biscuits in thejand I put raisins;

blokes ate oats. And

50/50 raisins and oats. And that wa;f¥.ate.

KH: You used to cook it?

RK: No.

KH: Just a bit of milk, powdered milk and - - -

RK: Yes, powdered milk and water. I vsed to be 11 stone.
KH: 11 stone.

RK: I am just about 14 now, or thirteen and a half stone.
KH: You were a lot lighter then.

RK: Yes, I was very light ves.

KH: 11 stene? That is not much, because you are pretty
tall. aren't you?

RK: Yes, I am 6 foot, exactly 6 foot. It was 2 good
welght. Like, I had 2 15 skis then. In those days. skis were a
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bit wider then. I could sort of ski on the top, I think, a lot

better then.

KH: 1 see. So. what. the Balmain Cup was what , in early

July or something?

RK: It was very early - it was even before ACT - it was the
very first race. It always started - pbut now it is gifferent.
The Balmain Cup is the last one. But then in the early days it
was the first one. And that was the time we all went up for the
Balmaln Cup and everybhody was snowed in. All the cars were
snowed 1n. Nebody got their cars out -~ for half the winter. all
the cars were rotting in the snow.

=

H

For three months or something?
K Yes, and we had sticks we put against them. Little

R
bits from the windows ..........and I put it on the top of ny

a

cof so I knew where my car was. First I theught, I would Jjust

Q.

1g it ouvt when it stops, but it never blooqystopped. And I had
three or four sticks, and they Just kept going up. and in the

end, I had to dig my wax, you see, out, because I had mny waxes

in the boot. I had some - and I had Ross Martin. Pinkas, and
this Finnish bloke, and we took all day. We had sort of a hole
and steps, and one bloke throw snow to another. And we got to

the beoot following a stick down. And we got the waxes out, and
then I locoked through the back window. and I could see my car
root had collapsed, over the top. That was it. And I Just for-
ot 1t then and I did not even worry. I thought when the snow

melts I will get it again.

KH: Digd it start when the snow nelted?

R¥.: Oh vas, it started, Funnily encugh, it started. Angd I
. . whee (7 .

went 1n the front seat and T kicked the roof went in.

Gndt s alrighFe

and hung the bonnet up a bit?\ I drgbe it down to Canberra. And

they w»wut & new bonnet on it. I think they fixed the roof up and

put @ new, 1id on. But the Tovota Crown had a huge frame under-

neath it, it is a bilig frane. And 1t did net have that nmuch

was ] 5 .
damage, bhecause tnereﬂice underneath the thing, and the 1ce did
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not break the axles.

KH: What, some cars actually broke?

RK: Some cars got c¢rushed, they Jjust - - -

KH: Enormous welght.

RK: 17 feet of wet snow - it was 17 foot of wet snow on the

top ©of my car.

KH: 17 feet, you reckon?

RK: Yes, 17 feet. And some cars had even moere. And 1t was
wet. Like when it started to melt, the sun got in it, and it
started to melt, it was sort of coarse, wet, really heavy.&ﬁ%éz
KH: But the dam wall must have been dangercus to ski

across? The snow must have been above the railings.
RK: It was only up to the handrail. and funnily enough, it

must have bloézoff there: as it was coming it was bleowing off,

too.

KH: Because I can envisage this - like & haystack.

RK: It wasn't like that, it Just - — -

KH: No, I suppose it would not — it would blow off that.
RK: Yes, it blew off. It was safe enough. And all the ski
1ifts in Perisher, tiioy could not use them. They were all
stopped, the stations. They were — three weeks after the snow

started melting and they had bulldozers and they dug in, and dug
in, and they got a few running. And people could not go intoc the
valley eilther. You go in the Perisher Valley and it was Jjust
empty for a long time.

KH: So you really started to look at the country in 637

RK: Yes, that is where most of the blokes go wrong. They
think they know the beat, but that is not encugh, you have got to
know the whole thing. And you cannot spend time, you Jjust try to
invent what vou think. And what some blokes have done teco - I
tell all the blokes - I have been trying to teach these blokes -
Dennis, and David Elwvin and these blokes - not to change. Once
you got 3WGiHQ3 vou stick to it, because you are in your best

3 ) 0 )
mind when youRdecided. Once you have skied halfway there, you
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) thin K,
are getting a bithT¥g¢ﬂ$wnon. it does not look right, you go that
way. That is the first wrong thing. Even Kore Grundsunl.he has

been skiing here for 30 vears or whatever, a long time. he has
been up to Table Top, but he can see Kiandra there, and he has
decided he will go down to Four Mile Creelk. He goes down to
Eucumbene and he gets stuck there in the @b?%{ﬁﬁf?é....&nd he &l-
nost buried himself there, Just going in the country like that.

Well, it is Just rules, when you ski that far you don't think

stralight any nmore. You have to stick to your plans.
— o B ) Stick #o
{H: That 1s right. Sco you have got tosthe ridges there.

You have got to virtually head to Selwyn quarry, no, that is

RK: He has been two times - he has gone down the creek
there towards Eucumbene, because he was convinced that that was
the best way.

KH: Oh, vyou can go down Four Mile Creek, as long as you go
up cut of i1t again., across the top down into Kiandra. But i1f vyou

go right down Four Mile Creek you end uvp in the Eucumbene River.

RK: Yes. That is where they ended up.

KH: Did they?

RK: Yes. I know, he 1is t?o old anyway, now. But he went
to Tabkle Top -~ at one stage itrthat bad, Korg had a skid_oo and
he made @ skid_oo track all tns.way as far as he could. And then

" &41£ e d a”Tra
they 4.#’../rand they sk#\like hell. and they never would make
it, even on that. And blokes who work 1n the valley, they told
ne., '¥You go and have a look, they have got all the t i

=1 Ta 2 ¢ a raclk going u
Gothega ‘7&9 " : ' o

and across the ERelling Grounds. Where do you think

it is going?"” And they were all sort of - Lenny Harrington, who
is sort of, a bit of a big mouth, and he wasn't Kor®'s friend,

and he thought that would dob Korq in. And 1 skied round, and I

See
could,this track quite well. I thought, "0Oh yes, he is going to
have a go."™ And they couvld not even do it then. and that was the

last time Kor@& did it, when he tracked it and he could not do it,

only His back track - - - =
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KH: What year was that? son was; I knew where CesjacKks was, and I knew where the Brooks

RI : It must have been 66. And they tracked back up with-— were, and I could Jjust pull in if it turned bad. But I never had

Kore. It would have been 67. to use it.

KH: Kora and Otto had a number of goes, didn't they? KH: You never staved at Brooks Hut?

RK: Oh, they must havgrg dozen, I think. Rk Only in the summer.

KH: They started in 63, didn't they? FH: Only with George Dudzinski.

RK Yes, they had lots of goes. KH: Did you get - back in 64. or even in 63, did any other

KH: And they had a couple of goes when you did, too, didn't people come out? Any other ski tourels 7

they? R No. in 63, I don't think anybody came out, full stop.

RK: Yes, in the same year they tried to do it. And the KH: You were there the whole winter?

following again. RE: Yes, the whole winter.

KH: Did they have a go before you did it, that year? 647 KH: Nobody else came?

RK* No, I don't think so. I think it was after. That RK: Yes; And 64, Otto came around a few times, and George

vear, I think that I was the only one year, first. And then as came. And later in the season - like I came out in August from

soon as I did the fast time, they ¢hetked now I aia it, and they Grey Mare. I never stayed much paSétzzgﬁg%?F In Avgust., the

sort of tried to improve my way. But I think what they did not - Australian championship time I come out, and that is the end of

as I understand it, they went too low. I woulg¢£f§her get high my holiday. I came back to Canberra and startdworking.

to get with the good snow. They tried tocwfjf71.éggcl don't KH: 5S¢ you usually had about two months, July and August?

think it worked ouvt. I don't think it ever will work out. You ki ¥Yes. And I had a good time there on my own. But as

have got to keep on the trail on the good snow, and not cruise scon as the snow come, I would drive from here to Munvang, even

out, not try to make short cuts. garlier i1f there was any snow, and I would leave my carnuznd I

KH * BUut you &id not go around Crook's Eécecoursé? You see, would go uvp to Grey Mare. Often in the middle of the night.

you could have gone right around the Great Dividing Range, right KH: From Munyang?

around the Happy Jack's Basin. You did not do that. You cut RK: Yes. And 1 had really funny experiences, too. 1 went

across the Happy Jack's Basin. You have not got to Happy Jack's once - there was a bit of snow on the ground, and I had basket-

Plain. Some people say it is better to go right in or further ball bootﬁrgnd a rucksack on., and I was Jogging around. I got to

@ast. Ceglacks. and there were these boy scouts. They were a bit lost,

RK: It might have been all right, too. But I had sort of they <culd not f£find - they were near Valentine Hut. They could

skied that way to Cabramurra, so I thought it was very good not find the hut. I got there and they could not believe I was

ey And I had worked it out. Ard ales when 1 want 6 coming ©nn my OWn. And they said, "Where are vou going?" and I

Cabramurra, I used Brooks Hut in case it closed in, I knew where said. "To Grey Mare.” And they would not believe 1 was going

the hut was, I could call in there. And that was what I phoughtmnM3f” there. I said. "I go there quite often, it is all right. 1 know
oo, if it closes in, if I am on the edge., I might not findf#ﬁ%ets where it is.”

white-out and I might not find Brooks Hut. Now I knew where Maw- vt Where was that? Which hut wacs that?
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RK: Near Valentine's, the boy scouts were. It must have trees are growing up. but they are so young, there is no dead
been about midnight when I met these kids there. I was running stuff. It is really a problem dﬂ%@rey Mare. What we usually do
on my own. And when I run in the summertime, I used to have this - You see, I am tHE/HUt’s Maintenance @fficer for the Kosciusko
baseball cap, really long peak. And even if it was pitchdark. Huts Association -and we have trips in in the summer. We Sust
when you could not see the stars, you could see where the track load up the Land Rover - - -

went. ﬁnd I generally use it when I go fishing. I get some

really?ﬁat so you cannot see the stars. There is still a little (end of tape)

bit of light around. It can be pitch dark. But as soon as you

see lights, I think vour eyes sort of don't see so well.

KH: Did you ever meet Ted Winter?

RK: Yes, I nmet him a few times.

KH: But not then, ,an 63, 64.

RK: No. 64 he haez?z the hut, and he wrote some poems and
things - - -

KH: He wrote a poem about the murals. about that time.

RK: Yes. But it wag ezrs later till I met him. And he
used to be - one bloke came up from Geehi, too, 4 bloke.

But he came vp - I was up there in Septemnber with some YMCA
pecple, some girls and blokes and - and this bloke came up from
Geehi, and I don't remember his name. But Geehi Walking Club ac-
tually did some work later on in Grey Mare. We fixed it up
with George Dudzinski. I used to hire a Land Rover, and we pulled
some huts down. There used to be a hut below Grey Mare, too.

KH: Yes, the old Grey Mare Hvut.

RK: Yes, we pulled that hut down, and used the posts to
nake the sauna and fix the ceiling up in the mine office hut.
That hut that is up now, igzghe office for the gold mine. The

old hut was bigger, but it was al)l leaning like this already.
And we put the rope on it and pulled it a_bit with the Land
o pack of Carts

Rover, and it Just went - likeg ' and we got all
the materials. And I got a lot of firewood out of that, too.
Like, if I wasTGrey Mare now, there would not be even much
firewood around.

KH: No, that is right. It is very hard to get wood. the
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KH: That is staggering, yvou know, that in those years there
were so few people in that part of the world. Because now, I
nean, even weekdays there 1s hardly a time when there is nobody

at Grey Mare Hut.

REK: I went there once in Easter time, that must have been

66 — vou could not get in the hut.

KH: 667 At Easter time.

RK: Yes. And you would not get in the hut, [ Just ealked post. T
. wasa '+ - .

thought 1t my hut, but there were people living outside,

sleeping outside. I went to Pretty Plains a4nd. Sﬁjﬁdﬁm

KH: How big was that old hut at Grey Mare? would it have

had about four roonmns?

RK: Oh, it was at least twice as big as this hut now.
KH: Twice s big?

RK: Yes.

KH: With an iron roof?

RK: Iron roof, ves.

KH: It did not have wooden shingles?

RK: No, iron roof, I think.

KH: Iron roof, and what, weather boards?

RK @ Weather boards, yes., horizental weather boards round
it

KH: Was it & — it was not slab?

RK: No.

KH: It was all sawn timber?

sawn timber, because we used the timber in the

RK: b
Hhat Lkww;eiénzeﬂﬁ
sauna . -

the material - the sauna was &Wﬂfﬁﬁ.old hut. But it was beyond

burned down. And that way we got most of

repair. It was that bad. It was that dangerous you would not
walk_in.
KH: It is Just down to the right, isn't it, down in the

little gully there.

RK: Yes.

KH: And there is still some machinery there, I think. I
saw 1t last winter.

RK: Yes. In the maps even, these days, there is still two
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huts marked there. But the other hut 1s not there any nore.

KH: Were there any more huts there?

RK: No, that is the only twe I ever saw there.

KH: But mostly the Grey Mare Hut was the way it is when you

first went there in 637

RK: I think I went there about 62. summer, with George Dud-
zZinski. No, I went first in the winter. And they had put a door
on 1t. They did net have a door on it. The summer before they
had put a deoor on it. 1t daid not havéifront door. Somebody had

eocled oo |
the frongasn, i1t had fallen off, or something. éht it dé@ia

not have windows. We put those little windows on it. It 4id not
have windows. It mu§t have been a really dark hole.

KH: It was all closed up.

RK: Yes. We put those two little windows in it, and we put
the ceiling in it. It must have been a bloody cold place. The
ceiling came from the o0ld Grey Mare Hut., too., I think. And then
we got some bunks from the YMCA Ski €ub in Guthega, we brought
the bunkgagnd mattresses. But thayéﬂ*‘hf 4%#937\??....t00-

KH: SD. the mattresses are still there.

R¥.: Are they?

KH: There are mattresses there? Last winter. ves.

RK: Somebody told me thet there are no mattresses at all
there.

KH: No, all the bunks have mattresses.

RE: That is good.

KH: That hard sort of horsehair or kapok.

RE:z Kapok. Yes, we got them from the YMCA. We brought
themnm. One night we drove all the way from the Schlink Pass anad

down to Geehi and over the mountain, in the niddle of the night.

It zeemed like driving for ever. We were driving and driving and
driving.

KH: So was Maxn é&rke - did you meet him there?

B I did neot meet any Max é&rke.

KH: So it was mainly George Dudzinski, and vou - and
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or
anybody else who sort of, rebuilt it . fixed it up?
RK: There was this bloke, Richard Down. Actually he is
back from - - -
KH: Richard?
RK™ Richard Down. He is a diplomat now. A He was working
with the public service. He must have been auvi%, . for /
sé%ice, even then. And he was a good skier. He was as good as
Malcolm f10?¢aat the time. He was blcody gecod, and a really fear-
less downhiller too. And he was tough. He would come with
me..@é..the Grey Mare run - run to Grey Mare sometimes. And he
was a very good cross country skier too. And I have never seen
anybody who lived in Australia who could ski like he used to ski
down the mountain. A big .!?“%?ﬁ(.skier, hit the top, bang! And
he had long enough legs to ﬁéé@.?% And often in the Balmain Cup,
if you look in the old records, there is Richard Bown there,
really fast times in the downhill. He is not so good any nore.
He 1s sort of big in the middle. He plays tennis. I saw him the
other day - he Just came back £rom - from Brazil he came back

this time.

KH: There was an open fireplace, wasn't there, then?

RK ! Yes, there was.

KH: Did vou put a stove in?

RK: We put a kerosene we put in. Two primuses we put in,

and then we dragged the trolley up from the mine, tip it in the
fireplace. I don't know if it still there or not - the steel
trelley, that was the fireplace - was standing. And somebody
else came and put the doors on the fireplace. It could have been

Peter Ormay ......

EH: Peter Ormay?

RK: Yes, he used to do a lot of work.

KH: Yes, I know him.

RK: He went to the South Pole. You know that he was racing
too. He was pretty good. He was running every day.

KH: In the 60s?
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RK: Yes, then he gave up. And he never - I have not seen
Peter for I don't know when - a long time.

KH: He was living in Aranda, I think.

RK: Yes. He might be well off now. Like he went to

Antarctic, and he made a bit of money there.

KH: He went back to college.

RK: Did he?

KH: A course in ecology and land management, wildlife
managemnent. Because he was very keen on wildlife, like birds and
things.

RK Yes, he Ls that sort of bloke, really nice bloke,
KH: Yes, P“ﬁtfqulEt' A&ﬁué

KH: And what year Adid you the sauna,then? 19647
RK ! In the 64 sunmsr. ves.

¥H: S0 you had that all that winter?

RK: The big winter. you had vour sauna?

RK: Yes.

KH: I*wasprobably snowed under.

RK : It was not gquite sort of snowed under. It was
funny - the sauvna was sitting on the — - - =

KH: On the edge thers.

RK: Yes.

KH: I remember that.

RK1 Yes, the sauna was sort of sticking more out. but the

) —frees .
huvt, because 1t had;ﬁ%fg??iagnd it was more on the flat bit, the
hut was as ~ I could not believe - like it was getting dark and
I was sort of getting worried. I c¢could not see where the hut
was. I knew fairly well where to find it, then the snow fell in

) ) e underneath ot

the chinney. And the chimney was @@dly,It had sort of - -~ -
KH: Gone, had it?
RK: It was that danp. Every sunny day I put my sleeping on
the tin roof, try to dry it out. And it is always damp by the

Koy

NoOrnineg . It felf really damp in the hut. And soon as the sun

came up, a little of light, I Just go skiing. because it was so
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horrible in the hut, a long time.

KH: Did you have a shovel?

RK: Yes, we had a shovel.

KH: You must have done a lot of snow digging.

RK: Yes. 64 was a good vear. It d4id not blow much. Once

the snow came it sort of eased up and there was not very much

. Or Hhorrrrs ) ]
sort of bllzzarda\. I had a lot worse times - ves, 65, one
night, I thought scomnebody was dying outside the hut . I woke up

in the middle of the night, and bang, bang, bang. And 1 went

outside, and I could not see anything. And it seemed like some-
body wWas ......there. Then I went back again and I listened very
closely., and it was on the roof. And there was a gum tree - it-

was really windy and the gum tree branch bent cover the corruga-
tions. But it was such a good - like if sonebody was banging on

the wall. And I had to go out in the middle of the night to

check.
78 5 1 remember seeing - I was there the first time in 68, at
Grey Mare. I remember seeing a box of Ross Martin's food -

"mlease don't touch" or something.
RK: Yes, oh, his supplies.
KH: He must have been there for some vears. He must have

been staving there a fair bit.

RK: Yes. Do vou kKnow what happened? Ross. he theocught what
I did. I went there; I skied on my own; I was there. He went
there and he lasted exactly one night. There are a lot of
people. they cannot take silence like that, nothing. There 1s no
radic. nothing, only you, and a few rats. And he was there one
night and he went to pieces. He did not use his food, nothing.

He Jjust had to leave, he could not take it. He lasted one night.

He went back to Perisher. He never stayed on his own.

KH: This was 65, or something?

RK: Yes, 65, he must have béen there on his own. And he
could not take it. He lasted one night and that was enough. He

is that sort of bloke, he had to have friends, and he had to have
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radio - and he Just could not take it. He said he could not
believe it himself., He thought he could - he had been there with
me and he knew what it was like. But when he ﬁ% there on his own
ne Jjust could not take it. He Jjust came down, and all his Food
was there. He had a whole winter's food sitting in a heap.

KH: It was still there in 68.

RK: It would have been, because he had a lot of stuff.

KH: It might still be there.

RK Yes, he could not take it.

KH: And when was the last time vou went to Grey Mare?

RE: It must have 67 I skied there with Dennis ﬁéﬂ;&ﬁ’.

KH: Did Dennis go down there? Was he skiing then?

RK: Yes, He has been skiing - he was a young boy then. He

; = |

had taken up fhe sport. And I took him to Grey Mare. 7é Sce (/[éc.? 74‘7‘
f AC ZQ LIACe
it Mo d%i.,..? e 71Pear Gungarten, he thought_[has geoing the wrong
Way . Anad later on he said, he was wrong;I wasgs golng the right
Way. Like, wheq we got on Just past Valentine,we could see

m
there was no SHOWfbe valley and I was going the right way. I was
coming on the snow. He wanted to go right and he would have run

out of snow.

KH: Did you ever win the Australian cnampgionships?

RK: I won it two times in a row.

KH: 63 and 64.

RK: Yes, I think so, ves. 65 Kore beat me.

KH: Kore bé% you 1in 657

RK: Yes, I had the wrong wax.

KH: Did vyou? Cine St I?C*' P

RK: We had this new silver wax ¥ I aiways/ V' the wax, and

I never doubted it. And it said, "CZWFI‘.PFf:AWﬂW." and I said
ir  Rexsa .Sf'l'?."*’.“’:%".ﬂb:'?,.tnat is what it is. And bloody thing, it

would not run. And we had to save the course in Cabramurra, wetwcﬂ7[
near the Round Mountain because it rained the whole week in
Cabramurra, and we could not race there. We went to Round Moun-

tain. And we had to wax outside, and I had put ny shﬁk'ﬁbkéér o

becase [F par sty
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bloody - wax wa

they do not work in the cold wind.

much flame, and
thought,

ing and I Just

just about caught ne;
beat me a bit. 4But I was then much fitter then.
5

run rings rounq«if I had the same wax.

L I I A A A

"Oh bugger this."
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black spots, no it was not

s not running. And my blow torch and these gas 745’(—4*_1
They Just do not have
I Jjust could not get the wax off. And then I

S0 I saw the other blokes were wait-
the red A/IS'/G" over.

on the second lap I left him but he had

And on the first lap he

I could have

o
And when we went to ski

first - Kossy/Kiandra was - from Cabramurra to Perisher in 65,

and we started

KH: That
RK: Yes.
KH: Were
RK: That

that is right.

skiing from Round Mountalin along the road.

was the first /0% /Dd-//m C/ft-‘-'f‘c.

wasn't it/ Round Mountain,

you in that?

was the first one,

RK: Yes.

KH: There were five of you.

RK: Yes.

KH: There was Kore, was Otto Pinkes in that?

RE ¢ tto Rinkas and Charlie Derrick and Bob Madison. And I

Iwas-/zal

Knew/i we sta

- Ross had been with me to Grey Mare,

Just about every day.

L

go uvp to Jagungal,

never going to
way behind.
me when we got
yelling, "Oh,
here.
we walted.

were Just sort

KH: Was Ross Martin in that too?

of Jagungal.

don't leave us,
They don't know where they are going."

And it really turned bad,

ed fairly fast and I pushed on and I said to Ross
and we went up to Jagungal
and I always left him by miles going up the
Like when I

I said to Ross, "Don't hang on.

I am going to leave Kore there, and he is

catch me up.” And I went, and I left him a long

And Otto Piqkds was sort of - he could still vell to

{
over top, and the weather close%: and Otto started

don't leave us. We will all die

And I stopped and

it had closed in. And we

of - =
~

That was 64, wasn't it?
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RK: Ross was in it, ves.

KH: There were six of you, then.

RK: Yes, Ross was there, because I told Ross not to try to
hang on. And alsc there might have been one other - I don't
know, I don't remember if the Finnish - there was one Finnish
bloke used to ski there too, Asko Asilla, but I don't think he was
there, because his stomach started to play up. No, he would not
bg - = =

KH: Was that in 647

RK: 65, was the first.

KH: 65 was the first. It was not the big vear.

RK: No, no, it was not the big year.

KH: It was the year after.

RK: Yes. It was a crook year. It had lots of days like
that. They turned out - it was beautiful when it started, and

then it turned as nasty as it comes. You did net knew where vyou

. Were 2
skied, aggoun going. We were goilng near to Mawson's and we were

skiing sort of, lining up, and I knew the way to Mawson's and the

blokes were behind. And Otto skied next to me, and the next

thing he was 30 foot below and there was a cornice. You could

not tell where the snow was. It was that bad. It was Jjust sort

of a whiteout.

KH: So from Jagungal you went together?

RK: Yes, we all skied together. And then this Bob Madison

started to get cramps and he was really getting bad. Lucky, with
the blokes they had a snowcat in the Schlink Pass and we got Bob

in. And they took Bob back.

KH: They cane to meet you? . ;
p ¢¢m£-‘séﬂ£m 7#&@
RK: Yes. They had sort of ./\:,./\‘ and we skied all the

way together then to Perisher. There was no race at all. By the

time we got to Guthega there was that much soft snow, it was all
sort of - - it was new stuff, really new sort of fluffy type.

And we all....vvvsev....5kiing in the one row, walking along.

KH: Taking turns making the track, I suppose?



1036

ROBBIE Kilpinen

RK: Yes, it took a really long time to get out.

KH: Was Paddy Pallin at the start?

RE: I don't think - he was only at the other end. John
Morgan and some Snowy blokes .......It was good organisation,

they had radios on., and one snowcat+ = followed us to the foot of

the @‘W(..when we turned off to /‘7”";?““

KH: Did they have a track? No track.
RK: No track. They were too poor to have a track. We had
the snow cat track_ as, far .as agunggl. It was fast enough to
we sot of dd a 5F oﬂen—?een% " stter ol
Jagunga» S VQL'V\" o awsorn. er ﬁfon
there was no track whatsoever. And it really got nasty because
the new snow, it balls up too. And you would need a yellow
stick, if yvou had - 1t might be right some-

where, pext. place 41 bloody fRezes up, and we used 1o throw (abbits, op the, skis—

KH: I know all about that.
R¥: If somebody has practice skis, then fishscale, I think
Could
henhave skied away. Some days, there has been Ski
<

the tracks are getting so good now,.... skis don't bite so well
any more. But in the old days, there was not much tracks. I

skied lots of races - one bloke went in the front with the flag,

and if you started number one you Jjust about catch him up. On

the second lap you would get a bit of track. But these days they
have got track setting machines.

KH: Did you participate in the second Paddy Pallin Classic,

in 667 That was when they started them from Perisher, wasn't it?
Perisher up to the Chalet and back again.

RK: Yes, I think 66. I don't think I - I might have come up
here, to see] /&-&‘ Came £from Norway in 66. But I never 7"72/* ol Jaﬂzy
gave up skiing then, I did not do much “"Ai For a while I

did not even =~ somebody bought my cross country skis. I had a

few pair of .fé??% skis. Bob Madison, in fact, bought my roller

skis and ny f@@@? skis and he got really keen and he went to
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Sweden - he is there today. He Jjust got married there. He has
got some sort of building company going. He is doing all right.

He never came back.

KH: Really! . / . '
hrs dlad zanylf‘ or £§7évnyaw/g> His Dad t5 a

RK: And. . runs a pub in A ) .

publican._ They have got pubs there, and he was sort ofﬁraally

o .
well-off, - 1t must be all righqhn Sweden. He never came back.

KH: That was Bob Madison?

RK: Yes.

KH: What was the year you had your operation? On your
back?

RK: 7. It took a long time. It was going from worse - it
was getting bad, and I could not do much. I could not run any
more, and so I thought - I Jjust - I did not want to have an

operation , but it Just got that bad. In the end, I could see ny
leg was Just going to — would not bend at all. And then I heard
about this bloke in Sydney, and I went and saw him, and he said
they had got this new thing. They were going to fuse the bones

with the electric current. It made sense. Like., I can under-

stand galvanising and all that sort of stuff, or nickel plating.

And he said, "Oh yes, it works." and I said, "I'd better have a
G And in two weeks I could put my hands back on the floor
again. I have been good since.

KH: And you think it was caused by this accident that vou

had as a kid?

RK: Yes. Oh., I am dead sure, looking back now.

KH: It was a spinal injury.

RK: No, it is between the third and fourth lumbar, the ver-
tebra down there, All this was crushed, and the nerve ... in my

right leg was golng away, getting - - -

KH: Did you have it x-raved at all after it happened as a
kig?

RE @ No, no.

KH: You Just ignored it?
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RK: Yes, I got up, and I might have been sore for a few

days, o©or whatever. I just kept going. It did not really play up

until_I got more adult, sort of grown up, it started to play up:;

oncgﬁ% in a while I have these back .......then it goes away
again. A lot of people have crook backs, and even priests and

public servants. I was in the hospital - at the time I was in,
the next bloke was a prlest, and then there was scme doctors and
things. It does not matter what you are, you can still have a

crook back. It was surprising how many people. That is why

chiropracters do so well. There are so many people with crook
backs.

KH: They say, 1 think, that 60 per cent of the population
have something wrong with thelr back at some stage 1n their life.
RK: &nd I think that sort of brought - pole vaulting and
that - you have got to have good J?ﬁ?f. like, we did not have

foam mattresses and nothing like that.
1

KH: They land on great big things now, don t they?

RK: é P Oh ves. When you land on the soft foam rubber you do

not gt your back like that.

KH: S0 it really sort of started to deteriocrate in the late

60s7?

RK: Yes., It was really getting bad.

KH: And after vour operation did you go back te skiing

then?

RK: Not really. I have managed lodges in Perisher for uShﬂW
&éﬂﬂﬁﬁuclub. I managed that for two winters.

KH: Yes, -your wife was saying.

RK: I skied then, and I instructed in the valley, but I diad

i (4 5
net really do- I did some long runﬁ\— like we went to Jagungal
and back with David Elvin in the one day, and a few long trips.
But I did not do any traiping.

s
I wag«finished.

I was wrecked, even skiing to
Jagungal and back.
KH: In a day?
RK: Yes.
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KH: From Perisher?

RK: Yes.

KH: That is a pretty big day. Jhﬁ%;am?
RK: Yes. But I did not do - I did some training. I

' Ln e . . :
a4 bit of & 445 on the five track with Elvi n. Then Elvin
. . hare a Conck ) ]
said he liked 3 the Kossy/Kiandra. I said., "It

is not like like JEthat. You have got to know where you are

S

And I with them once.

going." I take them as far as Ces-—
Jacks, and they can work the other one out. I even volunteered to
ski from the other end. But they never - I think they got sort

of put off when they skied the first half. But that i1s one bloke

- - I +hink aﬁo Could do iF Cfi)
KH: He is skiing now.
RK: Yes. David Elwv/n. He is very sort of - he i1s a tough
boy.
. N
KH: s he_ here?
RK: Yes, 1s the big nut in the Woden

Valley Hospital, Dr Elvin. Sometimes he manipulates me when

something goes wrong.

KH: He is a young bloke.
as

RK: He 1s about 20 now, I think, 19 or 20. He still got

many years to try it. It does not mattey&ho it is, vou have got

to get good conditions,?gv-

KH: Are people pretty keen to have a go at the
Kiandra/Kossy run? P

(44
RK: You go to Coomaq and every night they have got their

ruddy maps out, and all this. The way they going, and they sort

their‘f%@yz out and there is big arguments, and they got bloody

big plans. They are both like - I don't know i1f you know Ken
Baxter - - =

KH: He has won some of the Paddy Pallin - - -

RK: Yes, he 1s a good skier, ves.

KH: He won a Paddy Pallin race.

RK: And he knows = I think they go over to Kore's hut, and
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he is doing a big of work there. But he have to get a lot of

things together at the same time. Like he has got to get the
# ¥ LY

decent snow all the way, and falrly good snow too. And I
- these new skis - like these J?%%ﬁf skis. Actually skis are
coming softer again for a while. Last year's skis, racing skis,

were that big, no-one could sgueeze them together in the middle,

no—-one. You had to really Jump on it to get it down. And even
big races this year, in the ..9(?!7@(...championship they had
soft skis there - they are going back. and I could not really -

zrlearnad to ski with a wooden ski, and I never learned to ski
properly with these really big plastic ones. Because you have
got to Jump like hell to keep them down. And ny style was not
like that. I started to ski mostly on the soft tracks and no
'fiacks, more in the bush. And I could not ski with that sort of
technigque. I would ski for a while, but not a long race. Well
now, these skis are getting better. Skis are changing. They have

got one ski in Finland now, they banned it, it is banned at the

momnent. It is like a Jjavelin, it is 30 millimetres in the heel
and on the tip. it is actually the wrong shape. It is like a
boat. They call it Javelin, Jjavelin skis.

KH: 30 miﬂimetres.

REK: Yes, 30 miuimetres in the tip and in the heel. And it
is 45 in the niddle. It is the wrong shape altogether. It is
banned. Next year they can use it,. Funnily enough, one bloke in
a big ski +.... who won the gold medal in the World Championships
was able to use them, but they have not banned that result. But

the Finnish Jjunio” team went to the European championships and

they got chucked out, with their skis, because there had not been

— any ski now has to be on the market for a full year before you

c¢an race with it. And that ski had not been.

KH: Is that right?

RK: Yes, they have to be on the market for a full year and
they have to be available to all the places. If it?some new

product you cannot put it in the race any meore like that. I
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think it 1s a good law, nmyself.

KH: But then the person that wins. wins it on ability
rather than - - -

RK: On the jE?T' Another team coming - the Norwegians have
got this new type ski, they have all these high tips now are out.
The new racing ski has got a lump, it pulls off the track better,
it has Just got a lump, like your wrist, a lump in the tip. And
it does not wobble on the track. All of t@is racing gear., it 1is
jJust going stupid. You Jjust could not uss&in normii-;iié Like

you c¢ould not ski with a Javelin skis. You go on oy oy

sonething, how can you steer things like that. You would be all

over the road.

KH: You would be spegring intoe the snow ' J?Wﬁé.

RK: Yes.

KH: When did vou meet your wife? Did you meet her in the
nountains?

RK: Yes, in the Cooma Hut. She used te work in the valley.
KH: She did not come out to Grey Mare with you?

RK: No, she has never been to Grey Mare so far.

KH: S0 in 63 and 64 you spent all that time by yourself,

most of the time?
RK: Yes.
KH: You would Jjust come down occasicnally for some shopping
or to go in a race?
RK: Yes. In the races 1 used to come and stay before I
. ks cowvvpd
would go in a race./\ln those ggys most of the blokes used to ski
really close together, not Kore, but all these new blokes, Otto

7713-7 Do

and Ross - they would ski fairly close. to Grey Mare -

Ottoc came once to Grey Mare ,to _spy on what I wa ‘doing, I guess.
i . (n She Loffom, L tvas s,

And I had this kilometre track......../ and he coulé’not believe

it He hed told the blokes, my tracks, they were like — really

wide. And he could not believe it. And later on he worked it

cut himself,. It was much better for balance, you learned to

transfer yow weight there, and he started to ski like that too.
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But you used to get really funny stories, like they knew I was . and you can enter the same norning, if vou get one more run off.
there, and they knew I wasn't working, I was bloody skiing all But not in Victoria, you could have sent your entry there in the
dsay. They really got scared when I came out of Grey Mare. It summer time. It is not even put in a month before.
was a good time. KH: The guy next door to you - - -
KH: Did it really make a big difference’ Like, were you a RK: Barry ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁlﬂ
lot faster than the others in the championships that you won? KH: Barry was sayving last year, I think he said, "I'm not
In 63, 64. . racing any more. There is too much politics."
RK Yes. Mostly I was four minutes in front - that sort of RK: It is really bad. It is unbelievable.
time., KH: Because Barry was quite good, wasn't he? He was one of
KH: That is a lot, isn't it? the top racers for a while.
RK: In Victoria, they still are real crook. They don't RK: Yes, he was keen. Barry - for track technigue - like
like any New South Wales or ACT bloke to win there. They would m Biéé:‘WOUid QEVEE last - no way he would ever ski fast 1ﬂ_é%éq@glow4;u
do anything - I went there, and they said, "It is not fair, all A€ZZ/2V9” doubt if he would last that long time anyway. But he has
the racers get the last lot of numbers." They put all the nun- got a sort of different technique. He has got a really fast
bers together, and I thought, oh ves, it is better to give the ---/‘{‘?;he sort of shuffles along. But he was really good - but
new blokestz.?@.éP- And I don't know- they put the numbers in the nostly our tracks get slow. You get a few blokes, and vyou get
hat. But my number must have been - I don't know how they did it wet snow tracks start and it gets always wet. And it is funny.
- 1 drew number one. I went in a blood;?lowingzgggrm and started snow — only in July, in that certain condition, vou got dry
number one, and I thought, they have got me ** . I pbeat them I snow. Other times you might think it is dry snow, but it is not
think, by 10 minutes. They never beat me at Falls Creek, never. really dry snow. Very seldom vou use blue stick, if you look
It was always crook, it was ail frozen over, all snowed over, back.
really bad. Every time in Victoria. I won it four years in a KH: That is right.
row. They never touched me there. It was really bad. It - Aoes RK: And say, in Finland, you can Jjust about put blue stick
not matter what they did. There was this bloke.‘bq Walpole, he on any day, and in the middle of the winter, you have put on
is a really bad sport - Victorians are bad, so far, from what I green for weeks. And you never change your wax. How easy! It
have seen, they do not like anvybody who comes from outside. And Just makes you sick. I went to Finland in 73, and the warmest 1t
they Jjust change the rules or try to do anything to beat vou, got was 18 degrees all the time I was there, and that was still
not fairly. What they did, I think, the vear before last, Ken Specnd. green -
Baxter and .é@ﬁ%ﬁ. went there, and because they had entered KH: 187
wrongly, they let them race, and these New South Wales blokes got RK: 18 below zero.
the first and second whatever. And then they said, "Oh, by rule KH: Minus.
so and so, so and so, You were entered wrongly," and they did not ‘ RK: Yes, minus celsius, ves. And it never gets that cold
get anything. They did not even get a mention in the results. here, full stop. And that was the warmest. It was 20 and 27,
And there was a big stir. Like we let folks come from Victoria, and that sort of thing. And some days it was 18, and oh, it was
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beauvtiful. And that is when it really puts me offf%-lee people PRROLE Skl
ski in Finland, they ski so much. It so easy too. You ski here

" 3 4 H: R R Jack's that way, oing from Kiand t
and have all the hassles going up, that i1s what starts putting me K G ¥ g g =8 HEEa o

" . : k Dam, it is further to - - -
off now, all the hassles going up the bloody mountain. This year Broken

they have got some new law - I don't know if you read about It bt 1% 4§ & picy momebody SoEs ROU open sOMS SO e plage

) } . . . ) . . of .
i : . . . again 1n Kiandra, because Kilandra 1s nice. It is sort,easier to
they are golng to put signs on a certaln section of the Kosciusko

Road get there, 1t 1s a good road, and it is good country for cross

. ountry skilng.
KH: Where vou have got to take chains. You have got to % = g

D TR . KH: But there is good skiing at Selwyn guarry.
She ey 7%%, pw‘ Vo | RK: Oh ves.

RK: No, but in the Canberra Times, You
: Ml : . 3 KH: Do any of the blokes - - -
have geot t© puvt ﬁ%¢fﬂ.... ogqfertaln sections. And 1f they put
. . g RK : Yes, my brother went skiing there last winter. He came
1t llk;\’I won't go up.
5 5 4 from Sydne - the went -~ - -
KH: No, I don't think so. It 1s Just that vou got to have ¥ * f
: . ; < KH: It is guite popular.
them and that they will make you put them on, i1f it 1s necessary. d RoRULS
. 5 . . g z : S, ey there was hu .
RK: Yes, if it is like that, that is fair enough. But Rk LES apparently the = ndreds of peopis baere
Ly o/ w3 KH: Really?
-~ ' 1in the paper, they had already - - - ZfL—?%ed%,
RK: Yes. People live in Tumut and they come uvup in the us/\
T T and they go back again. And that 1s what they are doing there.
KH: It is really good touring - Kiandra.
REK: Oh vyes.
KH: If vyou come from, you know, Selwyn guarry to Table Top.

It gets a bit wet sometimes, but it is nilice country.

RK: Even last winter there was skiing on the Yarrangobilly
turnoff, there was goocd snow a long time there. You could ski
around there. And I ?id noéi%hat far in 64, One time I went to
Kiandra last year ...ﬂ{..was as goecd as 1n 64 - almost as good,
it was not quite as good. But there was a lot of snow in Kiandra
at one stage last year.

KH: Last year, vyes., there was. When we had the celebra-
tions, when we had the 50th anniversaly - you know, the 50th an-

niversary of the first crossing?

RK @ Yes.

KH: We had a lot of snow then. That was the end of July.
RK: Yes. It was really good. I thought I would go skiing
a bit there., too. But I went round with the young blokes in the

races.
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KH: But there were periods last winter when you could ski

across Happy Jack's River.

RK: Were there?

KH: Yes.

RK: That must have been good then, because even in 64 it
was Just fog:;hile, early July. Yes., you could ski across and

then it collapsed and vyou had big snow banks there.
KH: Yes. When we went across it was already broken

throuvgh. But we found the footbridge.

RK: I wonder - I have got te find out about that
footbridge. Because I went there in the summer time, there never
was any. We always went across - -

KH: It is very close - it is straight on the way - it is

almost on the route from Mackﬁg‘s Hut to Brooks. It is very

good, you don't have to get wet, or anything.

RK: Yes, I think somebody has done it after that. I am

dead sure.

KH: Yes, it could be. It Just looks like i1t has been there
. hem, _

a long time, becauvuse the logs have got mosses ogm 5Ut I suppose

they could get there failrly guickly. But the murals at Grey Mare

- yOoU wWere saving that somebody - & Polish bloke or somebody -

had drawn those.

RK: If I remember rightly, it was somne mine manager. Do
vyou know who was manager in the mine, who lived behind - when the
nine was closed. Two doctors owned that mine.

KH: Two doctors?

RK: Yes, two doctors from Victoria. The two doctors put
the money and somebody led them - in this bloody bullshit ......a
lot of meoney to be made there. And they put the finance in; they
put the ........., the diesel and everything else.

KH: The which? The diesel?

RK: Yes, there is still g diesel in the hills there.

KH: A diesel motor?

RE: Yes, it i1s still there, and a big fly wheel.
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KH: There is a fly wheel?
RK: Yes, and on the right hand side there is a big
cylinder. I think, that is the ..... in the diesel there. And

they put all - - -
KH: Was that 1949; is that right? .
‘ _ el a pr T

EK: Yes. Something like that. old

—— P e _ ,
visitor's book ﬁ?ﬁ. ...,11t had all that information. A bloke
mezﬁ,log all throuvgh the winter when he spent his time there.
what went on. It was all in the old log book. And then somebody
left it outside and rats bloody ate it.
KH: S50 it was a very old visiteors' book?
RK: Yes. It was sort of like a log book, 1t was a really

big book.

KH: And it dates back to the time when the mine was tvaruép.
RK: The mine was running, yes. The old bloke was left, and
it mentioned all the names who were - and how they got the things
ik They used bloody bullocks and everything to drag their
things 1in. And this winter, last time, this one bloke was left
in, and he went the whole winter there. And I thougﬂﬁhis name

was something like Beetson. And I think he}?s the bloke who did
the murals, but I could be wrong. But i1f you ring up George
Dudzinskl, because he has been there a lot more times than I have

been, and he had been years before I had been, too, he most

likely would remember the bloke's name, too. And he kKnows most
likely the blokes who own the hut. It was actually owned by two
blokes, these doctors, I think even today, sort of - at least

they had put their money up.

KH: There was a fellow called Bell who was involved with
that mine., whether he &% the manager of the mine - George Bell,
or scomething like that, that I have heard. But it was going
before, tooc. wasn't it? Like, the Grey Mare mine has been
started a couple of times.

REKE Yes.

KH: The last time was - - -
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RK: And then somebody told these doctors, oh there is a

really good gold mine, yYou will have to put a few bob there, and
o

you must really dig the old (ﬁﬂ%fnm that. And it was not like

that at all. They rarely got gold there.

KH: But none of them were around when you went there? in
637
RE ¢ No, I never see any of the blokss who actually owned

the thing, or had anything to do with it. But there was one

funny bleke in Outward Bound., had a base in the ruddy Alpine Hut

KH: Yes, that is right.

RE: And they had a Danish bloke there. He was a really

funny bloke, too. He had been there on his own.
KH: He lived at Alpine on his own?

RK: Yes. And actually, I never met the bloke hinmnself. He
was always out when I called in. But he had a lot of books. He
had a failr library there. aAnd they had - it must have been a
whole load of butter. They had one cupboard full of butter - it

went bad.

KH: Butter?
RK: Yes, 1t went bad. It was a leot of butter, it was Just
in there, wrappred in the - it must have been from a dairy, it was

not even in proper bags. And it

stank. Andé he had a little sauna in the ground, in a ﬁf&* sort ’7/

Q
heole in the ground. angqpot belly stove.

many times., and every time I went there, they had in a book, they

It was Just in the paper.

And I went there

had "gone out" somewhere. and this guy had gone out again. He
had some Outward Bound boys there.

KH: What was his name? You don't.}%emeber?

RE He was a Danish bloke, anyway. If it was Andersen - a

real Danish name, too.
KH: Because their tins of food are still there. There are
still big 5-gallon drums of dried onions and dried vegetables and

rice. And kilograms of pepper and kilograms of salt. In-
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credible, 1t is still there. It is going to be there for ever.

-

RK: Do they still have gas lights there ¢
KH: The gas lights have gone.
RE: Yes, they had bloody gas lights. I went there one

night, I thought I was going to meet him. I skied there and 1

skeeprie O . )
toog??....;<?gnd I thought I would go in the night, and I would

most likely meet him then. I went there and it was really cold,
and I turned the lights on, and blcoody things, they really
started, sort of, not working properly. big flames everywhere.

e

And I ran and turq\them all off. It was lucky they did not burn

iE GOWH. I don't know what was wrong with it. Just big flames.

really big flames came out of it. I Just had a fright.

KH: They used to have gas lanps? What, with gas bottles?
RK: No, they had one big bottle in the hall. and then they
had gas lights in the - - -

KH: they must have brought the gas bottles in with a truck.
RK! Oh ves. They had fleets - four-wheel fleets. They
brouvght all their supplies in the summer. They had a lot of
stuff there. I don't think they skied much. because I never saw
anybody else up - even tracks up on the hills there. I don't
know what they did. Maybe they Just came and walked round a bit.
I never saw then skiing.

KH: Where did you meet Ted Winter, for the first time? You

had heard about him?

RK: I think it was in the Cooma Hut, a f%:years atfter. 1
never met him - - -

KH: You never met him out in the bush?

B No. I met Paddy Pallin and Aéu?@éﬁ.once, 1 thinkcﬂL
Schink Pass or somewhere. Oh no, 1t was Consett Stephens we met
him. They were actually surveying what was the first Paddy Pal-

lin route, and I had never met Paddy Pallin before. And I met
this old fellow then.
KH: 1r. 65972

RK: Yes. I did not meet too many blokes then in the moun-
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KH:
River,
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Even bushwalking in the summer, you did not come across a
blokes.
No, when I was bushwalking in 68, there were not many
Yes. But it is different now. You even go fishing to

Plains, or somewhere arocund there, and you always see

But you would have seen people in the winter at White's
wouldn't vou?

Yes, 1t was like Pitt Street. During the holidays they

all came to bleocody White's River.

KH:
RK:
River.
far as
KH:
RK!:

Or Valentine's.

Yes. Oh. not many even to Valentine's, mosg?White's
Skis outside, hundreds of pairs skis. they all came as
White's River.

Or Mawsons' did they go to Mawson's?

Oh, very few to Mawson's. And then later on, 1t must

have been 65, there was this new club, the Squirrel Club, or

something - -

KH: Yes, did vyou meet the Sguirrels?

RK: No, I never met any.

KH: 65, vyou reckon they started? They were not there in
e all off & seddea

RK: I don't think so. becaus%«I think i1t was the year when
Ross Martin came up, we skied down there - this new é@@f. Sguir-

rels Club, and they had all new é?@éf. and a lot of food there.

KH:
RK:
bloody
KH:
RK:
KH:

there?

In 657
Yes. We used to laugh, because their wood heap was so
perfect. We used to get some supplies from there.

They had a blig tool box.
Yes,.
Slippers. books. Did you ever meet any stockmen up

Ne, by the time you got there, meost of the stockmen

finished about 58, even in the sumner you would not - - -
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RK: I never saw any cattle there, never.
KH: Grazing had finished by the time you got there.
RK: But funnily enough, in 65, we found dead sheep, not far

from Mawson's sort of towards Aipin Crom M;%on's on the flat

there. We were skiing and there were foxes on the snow, we could

see a long way away. And I said Ross then, "There has got to be

some animal they are eating." And when we skied there, there was
a gheepfthere. And _Rgss had been working as a Jackaroo with the

/{4”4’\7_‘./“{ o Kalsom zp‘éig,(‘:ooma. and he said, "Oh ves, this so-and-
S0 many years ©ld sheep, it must have been a stray sheep, and

they have chased it up on to the snow." There was a sheep there.

It was still sort of - it was not old - it had been 3Jjust been
killed recently. It was not very - nothing.
KH: We still find stock up there. There was some cattle

near Doubtful Gap all through the winter last year, they sur-—

vived.

RK: They must havgqa tough time.

KH: And there are now wild sheep, too, in some parts.

RK: Have vyou ever seen little wombats in the snow?

KH: I have seen wombats.

RK: Gee, they are funny. I used to watch them at Grey
Mare. They were in the c¢reek there. And little bastards like
that, and the snow was realliqin 64. They sort of swim in the
SNow.

KH: They are amazing in the snow. They drag their bellies
im at.

RK: Yes., really funny.

KH: But when yvou were talking before about how you have
scratched your way out of - when you c¢rossed the Happy Jack's

River, and you scratched yvour way up the other side, well, I saw
a wombat do Jjust that very thing. I was filming at the time.
And I got him trying to do this. And I ran out of film, because
it took him so long to get up this bit of a - and he would

Scratch and he would try to get the back leg up, and it woﬁ% slip
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again and again and agailn. Finally, after about 5 minutes, he
made 1i1t.
RK: Once I had a really funny go - I was going to

Cabramurra to do the shopping. And what I used to do, I would
tie my skis together and throw them over the river and put the
stocks and everything in the one bundle. One day, one ski got
loose and it slipped back in the river, and the river was sort of
half open and there was a bit of ice, and open again. And the
ski went underneath this ice float, it went underneath and came
vp again, and I did not catch it in the first one. Oh, I really
- I was panicking,. I could see it going where it was going, and
then I caught it, and I had te go in the really deep water to
catch it, too. And when I knew I was Jjust going to stop it I
used make it such a bundle and it Just would not slide anywhere;
I put all my clothes round the bindings, and if I had a rucksack,
put the rucksack there too.

KH: But that would have taken you on that crossing in 64,
That would have taken you what, a guarter of an hour or so., out
of vour time.

RK: Oh ves. Then I waxed too. I ate and waxed. Once I get

over I put my - - -

KH: Oh, you waxed it?

RK: The only wazx I did.

KH: What wax did you put on then?

RK: Purple blister right down 14; purple blister.
KH: Purple blister?

RK: Yes, right down.

KH: From green stick?

RE: Yes, green stick.

KH: Straighg%?g purple blister?

RE: | Yes, because I had double poled down the creel,

7?53@“dfk or whatever that creek - but I double poled all the
way. I was slipping already then I was coming down. but it did

not matter becauvse I was double poling. I got there and 1 could
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see 1t was getting warn. I had lost the cloud, and I knew it was

going to get soggy, and I put the purple on, and that is the only

time I waxed. It bloody worked too.

KH: And then yoézgwo guys near Table Top?

RK Yes, Danny Collman - and ......

KH: How far past Table Top?

RK. Sort of - they were down from Selwyn quarry. There

were sort of poles, the measuring poles on the flat there, the

open bit, and they were measuring the poles, for the measurements

they take from then. They had a ...... snowcat there. And I
felt thairsty then, and I thought - the snowcat was sort of way,
way up, and they were sort of down about over there. And I

thought I would ask for a drink, but I could see they did not
have a drink with them, and it would have been in .)A¢..and;z‘dld
not want to waste that much time to ski there and track these

blokes down. And I thought, oh, I will make it. But gee. I was

Fhe of dnnk .then.

KH: Sco, did you talk to them?

REK Yes, I said to Danny, I said - he said., "Where are you
going?" I said I am coming from Perisher. And he said., "How
leng - - - " I said, "Seven hours, a bit over seven hours — it is
the fast bit, over seven hours ten." And if I Just could have

kKept going I would have gone under eight.

KH; That is right. You were almost there,.

RK: Yes, oh ves,. I could have been under eight. But then
I thovght - I Jjust felt so stupid, like vou have been skiing that

long, and it did not make any sense pushing on like that.

KH: 50 what was the time that vou did?
RE: Eight hours eleven minutes.
KH: So that the man at Kiandra was your official

timekeeper?

RK: Yes, the postmaster. He was an ex-skier himself, too.
He had - one of those o0ld pioneers.
KH: Not Bill Pat_srick?
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RK: Yes, most likely, a sort of an old bloke, a really old
sort of little bloke.
KH: I have never met him. He is dead now. He died about

1973. He used to Kiandra ski champion.

RK: Yes, must have been the same bloke.

KH: He had the post office the last, I think.

RK: Yes. And he was in there, and he was skiing. So he
had skied himself too. And he rang up for me from the post of-
fice.

KH: That is very interesting. It is interesting that that

is guite a historical thing, because Bill Paterick was one of the

—~ oh vyes, he was a real old timer. as far as I know.

RK: Yes, he was really nice. He lived in Kiandra at that
time.

KH: That is right., he lived in the post office, I think.
RE: Yes, yes, he was there. He was a bit like - if I went
in the house somewhere in Finland - his door was shorter, it was

not guite buried in the snow, but it was sort of up to the eaves.
QA House  Sosecohere )
It was Just like ‘?\L.y\_ln Finland or somewhere 1n the Alps. It
was alf in the snow. Yes, that was the good o©ld days.
KH: And vou 8ié not really do the whole distance before
. . e
that? You did it in bits and p}ges.
RK: No, I only did the whole distance once. Only once. I
had done bits many times, many, many times I had done bits. But

the whole distance I only did once.

KH: Whereas Kore and Otto did it a number of times, didn't
they?
RK: Oh, they must have done it a dozen times, I think, ves.

They ﬁﬂdone it lots of times.

KH: They best time they did it in was about naine and a half
hours, wasn't it?

RK; Yes. They did not want to - I sort of believed Kore -
he might have done it that fast. But they did not even bother

a - . - -
ringing«?ecause they did not break the record. But I think Just
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to make it true, I think they should have rung him back, and then
nobody could have doubted it.

KH: That is pretty good. I imagine it is harder for two
preople together to break the record. I imagine you would be
faster by yourself.

RK: I think so too. Because sometimes you feel like going
fast at a certain time of day, another bloke night feel he is
golng too fast and gets a bit ...... and drags behind. And it is

very hard to get two blokes to ski the same speed, I think.

KH: I think you would do better by vourself. You know there
- = 3 - A 3 = @”M!

15 a fellow at the university, his name is Robert .

RE: Ne, I have not met him.

KH: Nobody knows about him. But I heard about him. And he
- I spoke to him. He used to do a lot of mountain climbing. He

was a really mountain climber until he had a bad accident when
climbing. And he used to do a lot of ski touring, and he used to
cover enormous distances in Canada in very good times. And he
was a real solo guy. He did solo runs and solo ski touring. And
he reckons that - this is now %:fgars ago - he skied - he had a
number of goes at finding the best route from Kiandra right
through to Thredbo in the main range. He reckons, after he did
the trip twice, that by the time he did it the third time he had
got the best route. And he reckons that he skied Kiandra to
Seaman's Hut in eight and a half hours, and that he stavyed at
Seaman's Hut that night, and skied back to Kiandra the next day,
but only got as far as Table Top. He got as far as Table Top in
ten and a half hours. He stayed there the night, the second day,
and then that little distance back to Kiandra on the third day.
REK: Yes, that would be bloody good running, if he did that.
KH: That is incredible, I think. Especially that he went
and turned round the next day.

RK: Have you heard of a bushwalker, a Sydney bloke, called
Colin Camel? All the bushwalkers in Sydney, they talk about this

bloke. He goes - oh, 60 miles is nothing in a aday. Nobody can
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walk with him. Jz;ewnj?

KH: Not Ray .

RK: Yes, I think so. Something like that, his name is.

KH: Because Phil.é&ﬂf does a lot of runningﬂé”J

RK: No, this is Jjust a walker, he is Just a bushwalker. And
he has had some incredible walks. Nobody sort of - a two day trip

is nothing for himn.

One day, bang, bang, he has - I heard he had

walked almost the same time from Perisher to Kiandra what blokes

have done

have not met the bloke, but I heard.

running, he has walked, with a rucksack on the back. I

Ross Martin was saying,

this Camel, and he was staying in the Blue Mountains, some really

tough walks.

there in a day.

And what blokes do in mayvbe three days, he might be

JECresns
KH: Probably Ray 5
RE: Yes, something like that.

Sresmn 3 .
KH: Because Ray is a 5N?ﬂ.€‘1469"
RK: They call him Camel anyway, that is his nicknane.
KH: But I =said to this Robert fellow, you Kknow,.
next yvear, "Give us a ring when you are going to do it and we

will time you and we will check you out and check you in again.

Do it from Perisher to Kiandra."

RK:
KH:

who does

to beat himself.

RK:

Yes.

But he has not contacted me. But he is the sort of guy
not care about publicity, or anything, he is Jjust there
He is only interested in beating his own times.

Yes, you should get him over. Because that is what you

need, some bloke to go,alone, and who can ski on his own. Like

these blokes, Dennis kéﬂ4€4&, Peter Thompson, I don't think they

would really dare to go on their own.

KH:
younger.
RK:
KH:
at night

No, yvou need somebody like Ted Winter, about 50 years

Yes, he would know the way to go.
Oh Ted, he skis day and night. He says he skio nore

than in the day. Because he really got used to navigat-
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. A r
ing by the stars. In preparation for the anniversgq crossing
last winter, he skied Perisher tco Kiandra by himself, and no

problens. And then he was going toc go back with Paddy Pallin ana

some of the others, the other old-timers, on the official cross-—
1
ing Fory

a burned leg

¥iandra. but, vou know, his daughter got burned. had
—at. Dreken Dem AF.

RK: He went back after, he brought his daughter, and he

went back again.

KH: That 48 £3.8hE. He started off & day and a half later,

and caught Paddy., I think, at Guthega, went up with him on the

same lines, they both arrived together.

RK: He is & tough bugger. Have you seen his son?
KH: Joel?
RK: Yes.

He is so skinny, you would not think he has got
any strength, but he skies all right too.

KH: That is right. Joel is apparently going to work down
there all the winter this vear.

RK: i R e R

KH: He is going te concentrate on - he is already down

there working.

RK That is gcod. Because we have got this new bloke from

Victoria, Chris Allen, who last vear went well. He beat all the

blokes in the nationals. And he is the same age as Joel Winter.

And we are golng to get good conmpetition. That is how we might

get somsaf all these old buggers ~ they can pack their skis up.
They can teach blokes but they are never goingﬁo be any good in

big races. I kneow the ski racing is getting so bloody cunninguﬂvhy

carbon fibre poles, and all thESEs/??@éi. skis and é%%@@f I
don't know, to me’it is a bit too fancy.

KH: Joel is taking a ye&r off. He finished the higher

school certificate, and he is taking a year off this vear.

RK: He is tough for a little — I used to teach him a bit,
to ski. His_dad vsed te pay for his lessons and I would take hin
e

around. )ﬁ?ays he was really crook, and I thought, oh he will
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not turn up. And I would Just go and seek him out. He would be

there in his oilskins and he would still comne.

KH: Do vyou know his Ffather used to be the Australian pole
vaulting champion - Ted Winter?

RK: Did he?

KH: Ted Winter was - he was telling me - I had him at my
place the other weekend. He was a chanpion athlete for about 20

vyears, from about the late 1920s right through to after the
Second World War, into the 1940s. He was good at long Jumping,
hop, step and Jump. at high Jumping, but his main thing was pole
vaulting. And he reckons he would have been in the Olympics but
they did not have them because it was war time. he missed out

on 36, but there was no Olympics in 40 or in 44, when he was at

peak, at peak condition. I think that partly explains why he is
still so tough. Because he was fit, a top athlete for 20 years.
That really staggers me. And he still won_ _an Australian cham-—
pionship at the age of 40 in athletics,/\“;ge;t is incrediﬁlz.';séﬁ
RK: A bit like Percy Cerutty, he won Australian .;Ag.. when
he ws 45, in the marathon.

KH: Who was that?

RE:: Percy Cexytty.

KH: That is right, he took up running when he é@ﬁo, didn't
he?

& cloot

RK: Yes, they '~ him out of the public service because
he was going to die. And he thought, "Something is bloody wrong
there."” And he Jjust started to eat raw meat and fruits, and he
cooked nothing. And five years later, he was our marathon cham-
pion.

KH: Did he?

RK: Yes, he got kicked out from the post office, because his

condition was such that he would not last very long, he was going
to die. And he thought, "Oh, bugger this." And he never looked
back, He did not eat anything cooked or any meat - yves, nmneat he

would cook once, but if it was already cooked and reheated, he
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would not touch it. It was gone off for hin. It had to be Jjust
cooked once, that was all right. And then he discovered ocats.
That was his big thing. He Just had to eat oats: not to eat but-
ter or drink milk. The Victorian Milk Board paid him four
thousand pounds to shut up, because he was telling evervbody but-

te_r was bad for your heart, and you Jjust can't digest that sort

of fat, it Jjust slows vou down. And he was screamning round the
countryside. And they came and said, "If you Jjust shut up, you
will gefr four thousand bucks. ' He got the four thousand bucks,

S . ! ,
and he - told his athletes not to eat butter/ Mje .C?”é/"/- i

. aé, Groend .

kk was a funny bugger, boy, he was funny.

KH: He died in 85 or something, didn't he?
RK: Yes. He was 70. Yes, I went to his birthday when I

was once on his camp and he bought - — -

KH: Oh. you went to his canp?

RK: Yes.

KH: What., back when, in the early 60s?

RK: Yes, 62 and 3, I think.

KH: Did you? You did some training with him?

RK: Yes, I got all these ideas there. And he bought a
sports car because he went in the - he had an Austin Princess,
one of those big things like a Rolls Rovece. He went to sleep
while he was driving it. He said, " Nobody needs a car like that,

it 1s too guiet, it Jjust goes fast and you don't know how fast it

is going." And next thing he came with this bleoody little sports
car with Volkswagen motor in the back, noisy as hell. He said,
"You would never sleep in that.”" He was the funniest bloody
thing in Victoria. Oh, he was outspoken, he was - - -

KH: Did vyou ever meet Ken Breakspear?

RK: Yes, a few times.

KR: Because he was still racing a bit, wasn't he, in the
early 60s7? //ﬁiéﬂ'gaéq

RE: He used to come and ski with Bruce and the

¢ld fellows, they used to - hé“ﬁﬁkﬁ%ﬁ..for Paddy Pallin. He
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mnight not race, but he is often around. /
; Bet’s
KH: He used to do that route between Alpine and
Camp, hundreds of times .......
RK" Yes.
€ Crac )
KH: He would,from Alpine to the Chalet for lunch and back
again in the afternoon.
RK: He was deoing a lot of downhilling there, because in

Perisher, if you were over 75 or whatever, you would get free day

tickets.
KH: If vyou were a pensioner? Over 657
RK: Yes. He is old enough and he can ski - and he was
. _ ) i ] 208 . i i .
skiing downhill like . e And he had very time in the trials

when they got those national star ratings, or whatever, he did

really decent tines. He skied a lot last year. He does not work
any more, he just skied and skied downhill. He had got these new
shovel .. 'skis, the really short ones, and he does all right.

KH: Because he was one of the first - I think he was one of
the first really good tourers. -7; ﬁeﬁé G‘“p qoo(

RK: Yes, oh ves, he was. .- + sese.to Alpine Hut
and back in a day. like nothing. And he takes people in and out.
KH: Did you ever hear about George AAlberg?

RK: Yes, I heard about him, but I don't he was round any
more when I started. Bruce Haqdlinfén Knew ..........George

ARlberg. Bruce skied in the old days, in the Ghalet.
KH: Bruce?

RK: Has;}ing n. He runs the farm near Cooma airport, called

Kelton Plains.

KH: Now? Today?
RK : Yes. He is one of the pioneers. He has been out
there, you know,..... 50 or 51, or something. He went actually

cross country racing then.
KH: But George A#lberg was before that. In the thirties.

RK: Yes, oh yes, a long time before. But Bruce had met

Genmnge A@lberg.
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KH: Bruce Hasylingsn?
RK: Yes. Farm near the Cooma airport. Yes, a farm called

Kelton Plains.

KH: I must call in there.

RK: He is a really nice bloke, and he knows - - =

KH: He would know a lot about the history and the charac-—
ters. Azﬂuu

RK: Oh yes, he woulg«ﬁost of the people around.

KH: What. is he in his 60s7?

RK: Yes, he would be. A sort of really lively too. Boy,
he has got funny stories. He is a really good bloke.

KH: He tells a good story.

RK: Oh ves.

KH: I am always looking for people who tell a good story.
RK And he can make such a - he 1s so funny. Sometimes we

go, after the Balmain Cup or the Perisher Cup, we go down to the
Valley Inn, or Sundeck. And once he went te Sundeck, and he
grabbed one Cooma bloke with him and he went in the kitchen in
the Sundeck, and said, "Excuse me, can we come and have a
inspection? I am the cook from Cooma Hut," he said. And he went

and search through all the bloody things there - a cook from

Cocma Hut - there is no cooks in Cooma Hut., full stop. And he sade ﬁ%ﬁ

59.44537'Then he lauvghed tco himself the next morning. They fooled

these blokes that they were the cooks from Cooma Hut. They used
o

t/\racing in Victoria, he would come back and then he said - he

had got these old road signs. "Victorian Border" and all this

sort of stuff, he would stick them in his ute and bring then
home. And when the Snowy finished, they had auctions and all
these farmers went in to get a few hbikes. and things. And then
they had 5000 shovel heads, they were all half-worn, bloody use-
less things. But they went for a dollar or something like that,
but a huge load of shit.

KH: Where from?

REK: Island Bend.
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KH: From the Snowies?

RK ! Just old weorn out shovels. He bought it Jjust for a
lavgh, and behind hi?éhed he has got this ruddy heap of old
shovels. And stuff like that, he is Jjust - he is a really funny
bloke. What the hell! It was fun to - - -

KH: But he was a farmer. He has been a farmer all his life.

RK: Yes, he has got a big farm there.
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RK: s - s s bEeCause a company, so many blokes went and it
is golng to be a resort. And they hoped this ....... a resort.

p i Wea J'M
Thern .11+ .And I would neot be surprised if Ken

was one of the partners.

KH: Yes, well, I have talked to - I have got a pretty story
on Alpine because I talked to Oliver Moﬁarty. He was the first -
the main instigator of the building of Alpine. He was in Can-
berra last year, and I interviewed him. Then I also talked to
the cook, Charlie Fletcher. Charlie Fletcher was a cook there in
1939, 40, and 41. And he told me how they used to drive a

couple of head of cattle to the edge of the snow, slaughter them

there and hang them from the trees. And pecople would go down
from Alpine and cut their meat during the winter. These sort of
stories. I have got some of that down.

RK: Yes, they were a fairly funny mob.

KH: But what was the name of this fellow again?

RK: Alan Cohen.

KH: Alan Cohen.

RK: Yes, he would be about 80 or something now. He =still

geoes skiing.

KH: Where does he come from? Is he a farmer?

RE: No, he is a chemist.

KH: Does he work in Sydney, or something?

RK: No, he is inland. It 1s not Bathurst, but that way.
KH: Orange - — —

RK: Tamworth, Tamworth. He has geot two chemist shops in
Tamworth.

KH: Oh, Tamworth. Gee, that is a long way away. He still

comes down?

RK: Yes, he is up - - -

KH: And he 1s in his elghties?

RK : Yes, he 1s an old bloke, really old bloke.
KH: And he has been skiing for a long time?

RK: Oh, he has been skiing here - I think one — a great
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he stay?
RK: At Snow Revellers. When you go up in the valley. find
out when he is booked in, like early in the season we get these

booking lists, and try to find ougxgz is here. Alan Cohen. And
he knows a lot about old things.

KH: And he still comes vup every yvear?

REK: Oh vyes. He has a sort of permanent booking. I don't
remenber the weekend, but it 1s early in the year., he stays for
about three weeks, or something like that. And then he cones for
& week or two later in the year again.
KH: So 1f 1 ring Snow Revellers they will be able to tell

me when he 1s booked in.

RK: Yes, they Just sort of know when certain people are up
and certain - lawyers come on the one weekend, aqgﬂélf’iﬁé doc—
T, And then come all these -~ - -

KH: The chemists.

R : Yes, There is lots of professional people. They are

[

nost SOKB\Pig sorts. There are a few Judges and - - -

KH: The Snow Revellers?

RK: Yes,

“H: That is interesting.

RK: And Snow Revellers itself, there i1s a few sort of old
fellows ~ they do not come regularly,., but Rocky Creek. I think

was the first club in the Perisher Valley. They were the people

who first builﬁaand then they had a bit of an argument then, and
the split up and they started to make Snow Revellers. First they
had a little hut, and then they made it bigger and bigger and
blgger. And now they have the Snow Revellers)what they have got
there. And most of them had skied in the é%alet in the old days,
really old timers there.

KH: That would be good.

KH: But I am particularly interested in the ones that went
Cross country. The ones that wmight have gone to Mawson's or to

Alpine.
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RK: Alan Cohen never does anything else. He does not even

have downhill skis.

KH: He still goes off from Snow Revellers up to the chalet?
RK: Yes, and he used to go almost every day, he would 9o
out. when I was manager there. So he is going to go there, and

1f he will not be back there and then, he Sust leaves a pit of a

map where he wants to go. 4nd he has got a ., o g whistle,
and he sits in the rocks there and whistle a Ffey.-le £%.and stuff
like that. He would not ski far. Like, he used to go skiing

with my wife, my wife sort of would ski with him. A very easy.

there was sort of %éood pastime.

] ol
KH: Did you ever go up to Lake f4ﬁé@$.:..
RK Yes, a few tines.
KH: What other old timers did you meet? Like, in the moun-

tains did you meet any? In 64. 65. Were there any other - be-
cavse I am particularly interested in people who used the outback
huts.

RK i Then I met this bloke once in - what's the creek?

Kilby's Creek or something.

KH: Ogilvie's Creek.
RK: Yes, Ogilvie's Creek. There was this bloke, McMahon.
But I think he came from Victoria. He has been there for

donkey's years. And I think he said he had been building Pretty
Plain Hut, and he knew a bloody lot of huts around there, around

Ogilvie's Creek.

KH: Because there is a hut on Ogilvie's Creek.
BK: Yes, and there is a few other huts too. And he Kknew
them all.
JGUMWQ '
KH: There are other huts near Dam, like Paton's Hut,

Aind then Wheeler's Hut is on the way to Pretty Plain.
RK : Yes., there was guite a few. He sort of prattled on,
there was guite a few huts there.

KH St not Reg McMahons

McMahon. What was his - it was

RK: I don't remempber nis first name. He was there with gz
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jeep, and I was Just having a bit of a picnic on a sort of table
beside the reoad, and he called in, and we started talking. aAng
he had skied a bit, and he had worked there a long time, and he
had been droving cattle there; and he had been involved in Pretty
Plains. He had been to Grey Hare. He had never sort of done
anvything at Grey Mare. But then, further on that way, towards

Victoria, he had mucked around there all his life.

KH: S0 he probably came up from Khancoban or somewhere.
RK: Oh, he was not even - I hung out in Khancoban at that
time. He was not from Khancoban, he was - — -

KH: Corryong.

RK: Corrvong or something like that. He was from out that
way.

KH: Did vyou ever meet the Mitchells. Tom Mitchell, or
Bl s vonern

RK: Yes, I met Ton. Yes, he reckoned I was going to die.
KH: He reckoned you were going te die?

R : Yes, he reckoned., '"One of these days, doing your
stunts, you are going to die." He reckoned all my trips were
stunts. He thought ;:%Lst nuts.

KH: Where did you meet him?

RK: I saw him once in Guthega. He was setting out for a
little trip with his wife, and George Dudzinski said, "This is
Tom Mitchel!l from Victeria.” And he said, "Oh, I heard about
vou." It was something like, "Give up your stunts., one of these
days vYou are goling die. There is no place for fools like you."
Or something - he was really angry with me, like he heard I was

on my own in Grey Mare, and he did not like that idea.

KH: He 1is a very outspoken fellow. They say that he is
slowling down. I have only met him once. He is not as - he is
guieter now. Because he 1s getting on, he is nearly 70 now, or

over 70 I think now.
RK: Yes, he must be, he was old then when I saw him.

KH: He has retired from parliament.
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/7L war once

RK: Yes. I know the house where he lived no%ldly\. pointed
out that is where he lived on top of the hill there.

KH: Did you speak to his wife?

RK: They were setting out. I Just sort of met them in the

carpark. They were going out and I was going somewhere with Dud—

zinski.
KH: Because she was a champion skier too.
REK: Yes. He has done a lot of touring. And they wrote a

lot of books about mountains. I don't know how many, but quite a
few. I have read a few of their books. Some about wildflowers
and some about this and that,.

KH: Some about wild horses. S0, are there any other huts

that you visited? Well, Valentine's would have been there.

RE : Oh yes, I have been to Valentine's. I have actually
aver spent’a few nights sometimes in Valentines. And I have been
to "gcéé?'é few times, I never - - -

KH: That 1s always locked. isn't it?

RE : No, it has got a key underneath the nat.

KH: It used to.

RK: Maybe not any more.

KH: No, I don't think so. I think the boys keep it well

and locked,
RK: aind I went to Pretty Plains in the summer too, a couple
of tines. I am planning teo go actually very soon. There i1is very
good fishing in the river Just about two miles down the river.
Fantastic fishing, Just about every cast vou get a fish on it.
KH: Really?
RK: Yes, and I never had such good fishing, trout fishing,
in my life. And I have been goling to go back and I have not been
back, but I am going to go back soon. I have got this old tub: I
fix it up and it is Just about Tfinished. I anmn going to drive it
up to e DJam and follow the creek up from there and go to try
to find that spot. It was./”s*‘unbelievable. At least every

casf‘you had fish, maybe in the - and I fished about 20 minutes
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cast-

and 1 could not any more. adL'

KH: Really?
RK: Yes, it was 3Just that good.
) (L el
KH: That is the 2 River, isn't 1t? .
RE : And they had lots of black snakes and f?é?fé,tmere.

But once you see a lot of black snakes, there is a lot of fish
there too. It was good.

KH: And so, are you building now, in your profession?

RK Yes, I do subcontracting, bricklaying in the sumnmer,
mainly. I build my own houses. But there are too many hassles
- 1Ff yog:?ﬁilding & concrete house you have to - I don't know,
when I built this house, there was electricians and plunmnbers and
drainers and roof tilers, and everybody Jjust tells lies - tell
yocu when they are coming. Something - "Oh, the truck has broken
down - - -" and so much sort of work over- every evening you have
got to chase these blokes round. And when I do bricklaying, I
Just do one line of work and it is nuch easier.

KH: S0 you are not building your own houses any mnore?

RK: Ne., I might make one nore. I have got this new -
«+...this new idea, you build yvour house more close down the
ground. I am looking for some battleaxe where I can sink it in
the hills, Jjust one side sticking out. because it will not get

hot in the summer. and it should not get very cool in the winter.

KH: A house for you?

RK: Yes. of my own. I don't know if I will ever get a
block of land like that in Canberra. Maybe somewhere - - -
KH: But most of the steep land is reserve, isn't it?

RK ¢ Yes, they don't have blocks like that here.

KH: No, that i1s right. What about Happy's Hut? Did vou

ever go to Happy's Hut?

RE: Happy's Hut?

KH: It 1s to the east of Brooks. To the right of Brooks.

RK : Yes. By mistake once - I think i1t was nistake, we were
Loy

walking with .—-Dudezinski. The next thing we hit this hut
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there. We did not know it was there. And we hit this hut, and
it was a goeod hut, and that is how we found it. And funnily

enocugh, we were going to go to Brooks's, and there were people in

Brooks's. We walked back to Happy's and we slept in Happy's
then.

KH: What about Broken Dam Hut?

RK: No, never stayed there.

KH? Or Four Mile Hut?

RE: No, never stayved 1n};;ur Mile Hutk&hq;;ﬁt

KH: No huts between Table Top and

REK: Never stayed - - -

KH: Never saw them? You did not know about them, I

suppose?

RK: No, we never stopped there. When we set out from
Kiandra, we would sort of get as far as Brooks's at least. And
then if I went on my own, I tried to get - really go hard and try
to get Grey Mare, stuff like that. And maybe walk back te Round
Meountain and back to Cabramurra and that way round. But one
funny thing too, is, in Perisher Valley - no, Smiggins Holes -
but all the road signs, anyway, they were in the wrong places.
If vyou do know the chemist bloke in Jindabyne, Ian Mcdonald?

KH: No. 76

RK: No, if vyou gedshe chemist shop in Jindabyne, he Knows
this bloke, in the old days when they were putting these signs

up. Perisher Creek, and so-and-so creek, most of those signs are

in the wrong place, they have found later. They are not where
they were suvpposed to be. And he has got a really leng story, a
funny story, how these places, they are not actually - this

Perisher Creek, no, it is not Perisher Creek at all, and stuff
like that - Perisher Valley. There is some funny - really, they-

get it all ballsed up, these blokes who had these signs on the

old track, and they put them up in the wrong places. And Smig-
gins Holes is not in the right place at all. But it served a
purpose., They have got the names there now, but it 1s not where
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they are supposed to be.

KH: Oh, really?
RK: That Ian Mcdonald, he is a good bloke, too, if vyou want
to - and he knows the old bugger who put the signs up. He is acg¢-

tually a funny bloke, Ian Mcdonald. He bought that c¢hemist's
shop in Jindabyne. And he makes Guthega Rub, and Kosciusko Cough
Elixir, and all sorts of these local medicines. They are not
really local, but he puts local names and all the bus people cone
and buy his Kosciusko Cough Elixir and Guthega Rubs and a&ll! this.
In the Guthega Rub he has got some special ingredients; he got -
some vegetable matter, and all sorts of things. People are
really impressed with his nedicine. He has only been there a
couple of years, but he knows lots of old blokes I have not even
met. And he was telling me how these lots of name places and
creek, they are in the wrong place on tne‘hills there.
KH: No, it is 3Just that there is a girl in Victoria who is
writing the history of skiing for the Victorian Ski Association,
or something like that.
RK: Wendy Cross, or somebody?
KH; Yes, Wendy Cross. She 1s writing a book now on the
histeory of skiing. She would be interested to speak to some of
these people. Whereas 1 am more interested in the history of the

huts, and the mountains away from the resorts.

RE : I don't know, the resorts, when you think of them, they
are not really in the mountains even. They are Just on the edge
of the mountains. The Snowy Mountains are away, like - most

pecople don't know. They think.oh, that i1s the skiing in

Australia - but the best snow i1s away from there.
KH: Around Mount Jagungal, 1 reckon.
RK: Yes. I think Jagungal is really mnountain. It is .

its cwn, it is in the wilderness there, and vou ski any direction-:

from there, and it is ggod country.
KH: You have beegqyordheiﬁ?
RK: Yes.
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KH: In the summner?
REK: In the sunmer. I never went there in the winter.
KH: And how is it going? *
_ b? of <
RK: From what I heard, they are sort of having a =

struggle now, because they bought two vehicles, and they were

something like $8000 a pop. And they have wrecked their vehicles

already and they need new ones. Because they need .ﬂ»ﬁaﬁé
vehicle9because they take thelr people in and out, mostly. And

that is going to be so costly.

KH ¢ They bought two of then?
R¥: Yes, Brian Hailg and Kore got one. And when they are on
a lease, too, like they Jjust keep them for three years. But they

will not last that long. Have you been through their track? It

is rough, it is Just wrecked now. Because when they cane
througp. when there was snow, tracks are ééM{§ 7%;* 7ﬁh7c ;éc' oy
JE, . . ﬂ?....44r444%?(...an6 they both had new Land Cruisers at

the start of the season., and they don't look like new now.

KH: I knew that they were driving right - very close to the
huts through thick snow - - -

RK: Yes. And sometimes he was stuck in the one place for
three davs, something like that. And once in the Bull's Peak
Creel he waz stuck for three dayvs, too. And the creek froze up
and ne had to use to use a chain saw to cut it free. And all
this trouble getting his people in. And it is such a long way.
S0 now, when you leave the sort of - what is that creek when you

- Gungarlin, o©or whatever - - -

KH: Gungar lin.
R¥ : Yes. when you leave that, it 1s an hour of rough,
really rough ride, and bloody mud holes. And some bits of the

paddocks, you can see he has been golng a few weeks that way, and
down there. and there is tracks everywhere. He is Just wrecking
the whole countryside where they are going.

KH: Do they actually own the land?
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RK: Yes, they own the land.

. .
KH: They own 1t7 P ’
RK ¢ No, actually, what they diq«— the Park has resumed 1t,

but because they got there before, they still can Keep their huts
there. But 1 heard vesterday, some blokes came down, they had -
they did not know if they would be able to Keep, because it has
cost them so much, like, getting people there. And they get a
few people. It is Just about booked out already. But what money
comes in and what it costs for transport and getting their stuff

in, i1t 1s such a long way, he might go bang.

KH: 50 they den't own the land; they lease it?

RK: Yes, at the moment it has been resumed.

KH: It has been resumed by the Park.

RK: Yes.

KH: Just their bit or the lot?

RK: Yes, because that bit was first of all a big ....... in
the Park.

KH: That is right.

RE: Yes, and they sort of know it was going to be resumed,

but they thought 1f they get there early enough, they 3just
would not dare to take it off. But like hell! They took it.
KR! But the Fark has to buy it back, don't they? They
would have to pay them.

RK: Yes. But I don't know the full story, how it is going
to end up. But I think it is most likely 1t 1s going to be a
disaster, because of the access. If they could fly a helicopter
in, it would be all right. But gee, the .......that they are
building -have you been in Nordheim?

A Hhe workmenshypy 13- -

RK: It is bloody rugged. o 5T A e And Brian i1s building his

/
KH i Yes.

own hut, and Kore is building his own. And Brian carted bricks
all the way/’ ‘rCooma to this bloody place, and they have got
enough rocks there to make a little foundation out of rocks - - —

KH?: They are building their own places, as well?
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RK: Yes, little places for themselves. At the moment they

are struggling on with them.

KH: But Gordon Broom, a fellow from Svdney. was going to
puild something there too.
RK: Yes, I think it is getting out of hand. Brian Hailg was

here a while ago, and he said he is going to make a hut in Round
Mountain., too. And I said, "How are you going to make onf in
Round Mountain? He said, "You don't need a permit, vou Jjust
stick one up. They don't care." Because people can use it
s+«ts:0a. D@ has taken skiers up to Round Mountain, have a bit of
tucker and come back there.

KH: But the road is not open. It is closed, it is locked.
Unless you have a key.

RK: Yes, most likely he does. He gets a key to here. He

is a funny bloke, he can get round these cofficials and all that.

He can talk and he can pull a few strings. And Kore said he is

. C;Mﬂu/ " P
so good, he sends hin get: some things and per-
mits. and he is so long-winded and he carries on. And they Just

ol

get fed up with hime.. S ... would not get anywhere with
then.
KH: No, Kore would be very brusgue - I imagine.

= no kg L o
RE ! Yes, a bit like me. if I go in thg GUS@AS 1 get in

" . If % kff’
and thers is a queuve, I just.G@%..%?f,},\I den't vack on that

longyg. But Brian Haig, he is good. He goes in some office and he
Just stirs them right up.

KH: Becauvuse some people, you know, say that the idea of
Nerdheim is a really good idea.

RE: It is a goeod idea. But if people skied in. that would
be the best idea, so they would not have to cart them in.

KH: At Alpine, they used to ride in. used to ride in on
horseback.

RK: Yes, that would be better, because horses do not wreck
the country. They can move in the mud and in the slush.

KH: Across the creeks when they are flowing.
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RK: Yes. Maybe that is what he should do, get 20 horses or

something.

KH: But people would not come then, I suppose.
RK: Most likely not.
KH: They would have to learn to ride, and they would not

like that.

RK: Yes, there 1s a blig problem there. And these blokes
who Just came down yesterday, they said they Just might go under
because vehicles are soO expensive now.

KH: 1t is about $120 a week, or something, to stay there,

Len ™t e

RK 3 Yes, it cost $140 last vear. But it has gone up. I

think. now. We went there at the end of the year. The snow was
FHE.

alrea %«Fhan we went up, mny family. Kore took us up. Boy, it

was cold then. There was no snoW;%ound the hut, but a bit of a
breeze ¢oling on. and you Just froze. It was cold. Lucky, ‘it

gets buried in the snow. but 1f it was not, you could not heat it

up.

KH: It was very nice the day we called in. I did the
crossing fromn Kianqra to Munvang in two days. And we went the
first day to Bocé:ez Hut. AnqﬂFg had a big day, the second day,
becauvuse we had to go all the way from Booltee's to Munyang. and
we called in at Nerdhein. And we felt very welcome and had a cup
of tes. Only days h?f:f?% nights, you know.

RK: Yes. 1 heard people who staved there last winter, they
did not find it cold. But I found it as bad as Grey Mare on a
bad day, it was celd. The wind was sort of whistling around.

The construction - mainly the work that Brian Haigﬁlzrais -“W15£E7
good material sometines. But it is a mammoth Job. Some nights

Kore would go and get four loads in the middle of the night in

the dark, and do his work in the day too. And then they would

sleep a few hours, and start carting - the truck could come only
,’
as far as Gunge lin, and then they cart everything on the bhack of
on Q

the Land Cruisers . trailer. And some stories he has - "in
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+his mudhole I was there for sco many houvrs - - =" They had three

days there, stuck like that with the trailer and all the gear in

the back.

KH: They must be keen.

RK: Oh ves.

KH: Brian Haig must be a real - I am quite surprised they

are going to so much trouble.

RK: Yes. There is no way I would persevere that long.
Like, I would not see nuch, nyself, there. LiKe({' is his busi-
ness, or whatever. All that punishment and all this. I went in
the Land Cruiser there, and it was a good day, not muddy or any-

thing. But gee, I had a2 sore bum by the time we got - - -

KH: Did you ever stay at Boob@US Hut?

RK: Did vou ever go there? g Far -&"4{ Mountain.

RK : Yes, I I';&?qebeen to Boobee!s ¢ Potze

KH: Or Farm © -, did you ever stay at Farm 7

RK : Yes, I have never staved. I have been to Farm’ph#g a
few times with George Dudzinski. We stayed in O'Keeﬁdg a few
times. thtlgc, .

KH: Because some of Farm . was still standing.

RK: Yes, 1t collapsed, ves.

KH: s s ew s it HEY gone, 5ut in the early 60s, when you
were there, it would have - a couple of the rooms would have
still been standing.

RK: Yes, people staved there.

KH: Did they?

RK: Yes.

KH: What bushwalkers? Zgék?
RK: Yes. There was even a bit of a hut up on the - ° ’
Cooper had & hut too.

KH: Yes., You still saw a bit of tnat?réu-s

RK: Yes. It was still — the frame had %« ' of tin - tin

roof lavers and a few boardS. But then I think some vandals went

and kicked it down. because it was fairly solid, what was stand-
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ing up there. it did not have much walls, but it would have been I picks and things, sort of miner's things;%ound it. It must be
all right in the rain, or something. You could have sat under Round Mountain Hut because it is so c¢lose to Round Mountain.
it. And the next timé:%ent up it was all down. I think somebody kaof Lots of fishermen go there, because about 10 blokes can sleep on
u/u.l‘ﬁ'flattened it down. that floer. It is a decent hut.
KH: Because some people have talked about rebuilding it. KH: I think that is the one that is being looked after by a
RK: Yes, it was a nice spot, a nice view there. ski club from the other side. People from Khancoban come up
KH: What about Table Top Hut? This side of Mount Table there. They have a key to the gate, and they drive up as far as
Top, going up on your left, Just before you go up on your left, they can, and then they ski into Round Mountain., They call them-
there is now only ruins, Just bits of tin and wood. selves the Round Mocuntain Ski Club, or something like that.
RK: Yes, it was not up even then. RE: Yes. That was a good hut.
KH: It was not up, no. y KH: But i1t is badly infested with rats. It was last
RK : But then there was one hut off the Grey Hare7A'c . or winter. Two guys I know staved there and they had to put some
halfway between ....A?&.and Round Mountain - oh, there is one platforms up in the rafters to get away from the rats. And even
hut down the creek, that must be-44%<7495§; good jarrah floor, not then they were still chased by the rats. Very bad - the worst
far from the road either, about a kilometre in and then vou go rat plague 1 have ever heard of. ~%
down the creek. It has a really good floor, a good tin hut. RK: Did you hear some blokes were in”, Hut, ana somebody's
KH: Near Round Mountain? boot® got eaten by rats? A leather beoot . He had the old sort, I
RK: Ves, think, they did not have these new soles. He had leather boots,
KH: That is probably called Round Mountain Hut. and when he woke up in the morning,?ﬁalf the bo?;t:;ten by a rat.
RK: Yes, down a long way, a really deep ride down. And KH: When was that?
then a bit furtheé{?here was.one a hut, but it has long since RK: I think it was last winter., I heard.
; . . - v v -
collaps?d. It had a roof op\back in 62, it must have been, the KH: Yoﬁcgza,t remember who 1t was-, g W oW = V> 746¢L
roof still up and we studied it in the summer, and we thought RK: It have been even Ted Winter @7 SPARAE qor some of
well, maybe one day we might have to sleep there if it really those blokes told me. And then there i%<glOKe - from "the Can-
gets cold. And the next winter we had a look and it Just had berra Alpine Club - because somebody - I had sone rubber ski
collapsed. ‘ boots, and I was selling them, and they were dirt cheap, and he
KH: So on& of the huts had a Sarrah floor in it? said he would like them. And I thought 4e.&ﬁ%&ﬁ‘ﬁ?&f%§32 so and
RK: Yas. éﬂ: so lost his boots, the rats ate them ..........and these rubber
KH: That mus}\Fhe Round Mountain Hut. I have not been ones, they cannot eat them’ ,
S _ KH: alfan Bagnall?
RK: And it has got a little Chinese hut next teo it. A : RK: 1t was not Bagnall.
really low hut, and there was a Chinese digger . lived there. KH: You know, he 1s an old ma“yﬁf EaﬁéAlpine Club.
It wa¥so low you could not walk in it. It was sort of a roof, RK: What is the other bloke? who goes bush-
you know, about that height. And we used to go and - it had walking. It might have been that bloke.
:
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KH: I don't kKnow - - -

REK ¢ Stan ..4?? that might have been - he bought some rub-

ber boots, I remenber, from ne.

KH: Because his leather ones got eaten.
RK : Yes,
KH: Yes, that is a good story.
RK: And it is not imnpossible. Like, I used to get rats in
Grey Mare. I have got a few slides somewhere, and they were big.
I had rabbit traps and I put a bit'of cheese in i1t or some-

. i s ver
thing.and 1 often have got them.x)[q..... by ths«nose.
KH: In a rabbit trap?
RK: Yes, 1in the rabbit trap. And they were big rats. Yes,
I put rabbit trap on - when I first moved in. for the first week
or two, I have a rabbit trap on every night. And I would get

one, at least one. Often I would Just get to bed and blow the
candle out, and it would go bang, it Jjust went off. And I would

get a couple 1in the night.

KH: You did not take rat traps with you? .

RK: No. There still must be some rabbit traps roun;:there.
They were good. We Aed them really fast. You Just touched

them and che ruddy thing went off. And they never let them go.

KH: It would kill straight away, would not it?

RK: Oh ves. But often they Just got cauvght by the nose and

I geot some .¢W@%¢?.....I must have been sadistic, I lauvghed when

I saw these bloody big rats caught by the very ) fi; .

KH: I know how you feel, because I hate rats. Like at

Mawson's one vear, they were very bad, and they were crawling
over my sleeping bag and around my head. Awful.

RK : Especially early in the year they seem to be more, when
the snow first comes, they all seem to be around. Maybe I killed
them all too. But early, it was - you could not sort of leave -
you c¢ould hear them running on the tins, scratching everywhere.

KH: Yes. The rabbit traps were still there.
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RE: Yes.
KH: Freo /thg ol¥ miners.
RE: We f'“( .them a little sort of tricky and they were

that - you Jjust touched them and they Jjust went off right away.
KH: Well, I think I have Just about got my - any other

stories of unusual things that happened, or - - -

RK ! Oh, I Just cannot remember now.

KH: Or stories that people have told you?

RK: I can't remember now.

KH: Probably when you get in with some of your mates, You
will probably remember - - - I think we have Just about got it.

That is probably enough for tonight.

RK: Yes. If I remember some funny things, I can ring yYou.

(end of tape)





